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Listed on SGX-SESDAQ on 6 August 1999 and upgraded to the 
Mainboard on 11 March 2002, KS Energy (formerly known as 
KS Tech Ltd) is an energy services group catering to the oil & 
gas and petrochemical industries around the world.

In addition to distributing more than 60,000 oil & gas related 
products that encompass over 140 international brands, the 
Group through a series of acquisitions in the last few years 
enhanced its expertise in the related services of procurement, 
distribution, engineering and offshore chartering to support its 
customers.

Over the last two decades, the Group has established very 
close working relationships with major oil & gas companies 
in the region. In leveraging its enhanced expertise as a leading 
one-stop supply and services provider with these long term 
relationships, KS Energy was able to provide higher value-added 
services by procuring and supplying upgraded capital assets to 
CNOOC Group, Maersk, Gulf Drilling International Limited 
and others under the service contracts it has secured since 
November 2003.

Headquartered in Singapore, the Group has subsidiaries and 
representative offi ces in China, Vietnam, Thailand, Qatar, UAE, 
USA and Malaysia to support its wide base of global oil & 
gas customers.

COMPANY PROFILE

A LEADING ONE-STOP 

ENERGY SERVICES 

PROVIDER TO THE 

GLOBAL OIL & GAS 

AND PETROCHEMICAL 

INDUSTRIES 
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       2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
       S’000 S’000 S’000 S’000 S’000

Turnover      269,081   95,253   67,564   71,121   54,600 
Profi t Before Tax     41,538   18,938   7,308   4,977   4,076 
Net Profi t      33,604   16,271   6,503   3,862   3,253 

Key Balance Sheet Indicators     
Shareholders’ Fund    109,482   48,411   37,427   25,168   19,405 
Total Assets      242,554   131,474   76,888   66,595   43,439 
Total Liabilities     117,098   79,461   39,461   41,427   24,033 

Performance Indicators     
Earnings Per Share (cents/share)*   17.05   8.84   3.53   2.10   1.76 
Net Asset Value (cents/share)*   55.20   26.30  20.33   13.67   10.54 

Financial Ratios     
ROE (%)      42.6   37.9   20.8   17.3  18.3 
ROA (%)      17.9   15.6 9.1   7.0   9.1
Current Ratio (times)   1.77   1.62   2.05   1.88   1.80 
Net Gearing (times)    Net cash   Net cash 0.29   0.40   0.11

* The comparative fi gures have been adjusted for new share placements and bonus share issues for the period up to 31 December 2005.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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183%

GROUP TURNOVER

107%

GROUP NET PROFIT

126%

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUND
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REVENUE BY 
GEOGRAPHICAL 

REVENUE BY 
BUSINESS

Singapore 35% China 10% Others 55%

Singapore 38% China 38% Others 24%

Distribution 60%Capital Equipment 40%

Distribution 73%Capital Equipment  27%

YEAR 2005

YEAR 2004

YEAR 2005

YEAR 2004
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

“With our successful 

transformation into an 

integrated energy services 

provider, we have laid a 

solid foundation for our 

long term growth.”
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To cap our strong performance, we are one of 
three winners of the Asiamoney Magazine’s 2005 
Best Corporate Awards for Excellence for the 
Singapore category. I wish to share this award with our 
management and staff in appreciation of their dedication 
and hard work during the year. I would also like to 
thank our customers, shareholders, bankers, business 
associates and suppliers for their generous support. 

Together with my fellow Board members, I warmly 
welcome Mr Lim Jit Poh, Mr Lim Ho Seng and Sheik 
Faisal Fahad Jassim M. Al-Thani who recently joined us 
as independent directors. All three gentlemen bring 
with them vast industry experience and I look forward 
to working closely with them in leading the Group 
to greater heights. Finally, I would like to thank all my 
fellow directors for their guidance and wise counsel 
during the year. 

 
TAN KIM SENG
Chairman

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present to you 
the annual report of the Group for fi nancial year ended 
31 December 2005. 

A few years ago, we made a strategic decision to revamp 
our business in order to improve our value added 
contribution to the oil & gas industry. From a distributor 
of equipment, parts and consumables, we have moved 
up the value chain by transforming successfully into 
a provider of capital equipment and related services. 

With this transformation, we have laid a solid foundation 
for the Group’s long term growth. We undertook our 
fi rst capital equipment project in November 2003 and 
have since secured a total of 14 capital equipment related 
contracts from customers around the world.  As a result 
of the growing demand for our products and services, 
we delivered a record performance in FY2005.

ANNUAL REPORT 2005
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CEO’S MESSAGE

FY2005: THE YEAR IN REVIEW

In FY2005, the Group experienced strong demand for 
its products and services. Group revenue grew 182.5% 
to a new record of $269.1 million. 

Robust demand for oil & gas has resulted in major oil 
companies accelerating investments in capital equipment 
and stepping up exploration and production (“E&P”) 
activities. The renewed activities coupled with two 
decades of under-investment in the industry has created 
an acute shortage for a range of capital equipment 
including drilling rigs, workover units, cranes, fl oating 
warehouses, pipelines and storage tanks. Due to limited 
new-build capacity for many of these assets, more E&P 
companies have turned to our timely and cost-effective 
solutions of using refurbished equipment. 

Due to new contracts secured for capital equipment, 
part or full year contributions from six contracts were 
recorded in FY2005 as compared to two in FY2004. 
As a result, revenue from capital equipment and related 
services grew 315.7% to $108.4 million.

Our distribution business also benefited from the 
buoyant oil & gas industry. Revenue growth of 132.3% 
to $160.7 million was assisted by the acquisition of 
subsidiaries offering complementary products and 
services during the year as well as demand from the 
growing number of capital equipment projects. 

As a result of our strong revenue growth in FY2005, 
gross profit grew 93.7% to $59.0 million. Other 
operating income jumped 99.6% to $17.2 million, 
boosted mainly by higher management fees, gains from 
share dilution of a subsidiary and divestment gains. 
Although operating expenses were higher due to the 
expansion in business activities, profi t from operations 
rose 121.8% to $39.9 million. With strong growth in 
our core business activities, the Group recorded another 

year of record performance with net profi t rising 107% 
to $33.6 million. 

To reward shareholders for the record performance, 
your Directors have proposed a 1-for-5 bonus issue 
together with a fi nal and special dividend of 2.0 cents 
and 0.6 cent per share respectively. Inclusive of the 
interim and special dividend paid after the interim 
FY2005 results, total gross dividend payout for FY2005 
amounts to $10.3 million as compared to $6.7 million 
in FY2004.

STRENGTHENED CORE COMPETENCIES 

In supplying parts and equipment to a wide network 
of oil majors, rig owners and drilling contractors over 
the last 30 years, we have established close working 
relationships with them. Our in depth knowledge of 
the condition and availability of their vintage capital 
equipment allows us to fulfi ll demand for specifi c capital 
equipment by procuring and refurbishing these used 
equipment. 

We strengthened our unique business model of providing 
refurbished capital equipment in the last few years by 
recruiting suitable talent to boost our management 
and technical capabilities as well as acquiring numerous 
companies to enhance our engineering capabilities and 
improve our product offering. 

To-date, we have secured 14 capital equipment related 
contracts from major oil companies in Asia, Scandinavia, 
North America as well as the Middle East.  All completed 
projects were successfully fi nished on time and within 
budget, earning us a proven track record in the industry. 
We will continue to leverage on our competitive 
advantages to capitalise on business opportunities in 
the global market. 
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PROSPECTS

The outlook for the oil & gas industry remains positive. 
Robust global demand for oil from developed as well as 
emerging economies is expected to continue and this 
will lead to additional investments in capital equipment 
to support E&P activities. As a result, demand is expected 
to remain strong for our customised solutions.

The completion of capital equipment projects and the 
subsequent chartering of some of these assets will 
expand our existing base of long term contracts with 
recurring contributions to group revenue and income. 
In the current year, we will continue to support our 
customers around the world with new capital equipment 
related projects. 

 
CHEW THIAM KENG
Chief Executive Offi cer

“In FY2005, the Group 

achieved another year of 

record performance. Group 

revenue soared 182.5% 

to $269.1 million and net 

profi t rose 107% to 

$33.6 million.” 
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BEFORE

AFTER

OFFSHORE JACK UP RIG

JULY 2004

Service agreement to procure, upgrade and maintain an 
offshore jack-up rig for a listed Chinese state owned 
company for 3 years.

PROGRESS

Income contribution from August 2004.

AFTER

OPERATIONS REVIEW – CAPITAL EQUIPMENT

BEFORE

OFFSHORE JACK UP RIG

NOV 2003

Contracted to procure, upgrade, maintain and charter 
an offshore jack-up rig to China Oilfi eld Services Ltd.  
Total charter contract value of US$56 million over 
8 years excludes rig servicing and maintenance fees. 

PROGRESS

Income contribution for another 6 years from June 2006.
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AFTER
BEFORE

BEFORE IN PROGRESS

OFFSHORE JACK UP 
ACCOMMODATION RIG

AUGUST 2004

Contracted to procure, upgrade, operate and charter 
an offshore jack-up accommodation rig to Maersk Olie 
og Gas AS. After the successful completion of the rig, 
the contract was re-packaged in May 2005 into a higher-
yielding contract to provide offshore & rig consultancy, 
procurement & asset management, crew & personnel 
support and general support services to a Swedish 
conglomerate. Total contract value is approximately 
US$34.5 million over 3 years.  

PROGRESS

Income contribution from 2H FY2005.

OFFSHORE JACK UP RIG

MARCH 2005

Appointed to convert vintage jack-up rig to mobile 
offshore drill ing rig, procure and manage the 
refurbishment of an offshore jack-up rig for Gulf Drilling 
International Limited for US$43 million.

PROGRESS

Work-in-progress with contribution from April 2005.
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AFTER

BEFORE

OFFSHORE JACK UP RIG

MARCH 2005

Agreement to procure and refurbish an offshore 
jack-up rig as well as supply key equipment for 
subsequent operation of the rig for a Norwegian client. 
Total project cost is approximately US$50 million.

PROGRESS

Income contribution from June 2005.

ONSHORE LAND 
DRILLING RIG

NOVEMBER 2005

Contracted to provide an onshore land drilling rig to a 
Qatar-based oil & gas company. Contract value of US$7.9 
million including equipment, parts, commissioning, 
transportation and project management. 

PROGRESS

Successfully delivered in 1Q FY2006.

COMPLETED

IN PROGRESS
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OPERATIONS REVIEW – DISTRIBUTION

ANNUAL REPORT 2005
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acquisition of a 20% interest in M.E.I. Engineers Pte Ltd 
enhanced our consultancy and engineering capabilities 
in the oil & gas as well as chemical processing 
industries.

Our integrated range of products and services has 
provided us with a strong foundation to undertake 
higher value added capital equipment related projects. 
As we continue to expand our portfolio of capital 
equipment projects, demand for our products and 
services will remain strong. The refurbishment and 
subsequent long term maintenance of the capital assets 
will create opportunities for us to cross sell oil & gas 
related parts, equipment and consumables. This will in 
turn generate growth in our distribution business. 

DISTRIBUTION BUSINESS

As the agent for more than 140 international brands, 
our Group supplies and distributes over 60,000 oil & 
gas related products including hydraulic equipment, 
instrumentation, valves and spare parts. Our extensive 
customer base comprises companies in the oil & gas, 
marine, mining and petrochemical industries. Some 
of these global names include Seatrax, Menck, Parker, 
Sandvik, Crosby, Ridgid, Dixon, Velan Valve, Alfa Laval, 
Moorfl ex, Gates Hoses, FCX, Enerpac, JH Williams 
and Strongwell.

In the past few years, we have made several strategic 
acquisitions to broaden our range of product offerings. 
Amidst the buoyant oil and gas industry, synergies from 
these acquisitions have contributed to the robust growth 
in our distribution business. 

In FY2005, we continued to expand our range 
of products and services. Through our subsidiary 
Aqua-Terra Supply Co. Limited, we bought a 100% 
stake in Orient Marine Pte Ltd, and a 25% interest 
in Runva Holdings Pte Ltd. In addition, our group 
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GROUP STRUCTURE

Note:  This group structure is corrected at 3rd March 2006

KSES (USA) Inc 25%

Harta Offshore & 
Marine Services Pte Ltd

50%

Atlantic Esbjerg Ltd 100%

AMS Denmark BV 50%

MarineHub  Pte Ltd 100%

Orient Marine Pte Ltd 100%

Runva Holdings Pte Ltd 25%

100%
Kim Seng Hardware & 
Oilfi eld Supply Pte Ltd 

Aqua-Terra Supply Co. 
Limited 

54.8%

KS Equipment 
(Shanghai) Ltd 100%

S & E Tech Pte Ltd 100%

S & E Cumford   
(Thailand) Ltd

100%

KS Oilfi eld Support  
(Asia Pacifi c) Limited

100%

KS Oilfi eld Support Ltd 100%

KS Oilfi eld Services Ltd 100%

Harta Holdings Pte Ltd 100%

Atlantic Esbjerg Holding  
Pte Ltd 100%

100%
GlobalTech Group 
Pte Ltd 

GlobalTech Systems 
Engineering Pte Ltd 

70%

GlobalTech Offshore & 
Marine Pte Ltd 

80%

New Strong Group 
Limited 50%

KS Energy Services  
Workshop 100%

S & E Cumford Sdn Bhd 100%

Starbeam Technology 
Pte Ltd 

100%

Aqua-Terra Supply 
(Shanghai) Co. Ltd 

100%

Aqua-Terra Offshore 
(Shanghai) Co. Ltd 

100%
Aqua-Terra Middle East 
Ltd

49%
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06-AUG-99

Listed on SGX-SESDAQ

11-MAR-02

Upgraded from SGX-SESDAQ to SGX Mainboard

27-JAN-05

Subsidiary Aqua-Terra Supply Co. Limited acquired 25% 
of Runva Holdings Pte Ltd, a manufacturer and supplier 
of winches

04-JAN-05 

Placement of 10 million new shares to Temasek Holdings 
Pte Ltd

02-MAR-05

Appointed by Gulf Drilling International Limited to 
procure and manage the conversion project of a vintage 
jack-up rig to a mobile offshore drilling rig

22-MAR-05

Appointed by a Norwegian client to provide partially 
refurbished vintage jack-up rig, as well as supply key 
equipment for use in subsequent operation of the rig

18-APR-05

Subsidiary Aqua-Terra Supply Co. Limited acquired 100% 
of Orient Marine Pte Ltd, a specialist in the procurement 
of marine equipment and consumable parts

28-APR-05

Change of company name to ‘KS Energy Services 
Limited’

17-MAY-05

Appointed by a Swedish conglomerate to provide 
offshore & rig consultancy, procurement & asset 
management, crew & personnel support, general support 
services

29-JUN-05

Appointed by an Asian based state owned oil & gas group 
to provide an upgraded offshore jack-up unit

12-JUL-05

Acquired a 20% equity interest in M.E.I. Engineers Pte 
Ltd, an engineering company servicing the oil and gas 
and chemical process industries 

18-JUL-05

Establishment of a joint venture company and a wholly 
owned subsidiary in Singapore named Harta Offshore 
and Marine Services Pte Ltd to undertake marine and 
offshore projects for the oil & gas industry
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23-AUG-05

Set up a joint venture company with Ezra Holdings Ltd 
to build-own-operate heavy lift accommodation pipelay 
& maintenance vessel to service the offshore oil & gas 
industry 

20-SEP-05

Secured a lease agreement with an north Asian national 
oil company to provide a set of refurbished offshore 
capital equipment 

03-OCT-05

Entered into a LOI with a north Asian based national oil 
company to provide and operate a fl oating warehouse to 
support its drilling operations in Indonesian waters

09-NOV-05

Appointed by a Qatar based oil company to provide 
a land drilling rig 

22-NOV-05

Set up a joint venture in USA to expand business 
activities to North America 

07-DEC-05

Associate company KSES (USA) Inc to charter offshore 
jack-up unit to an international oil company in Gulf of 
Mexico

15-DEC-05

Appointed by a Persian Gulf based company to provide 
3 pairs of cranes

04-JAN-06 

Secured contract from BR Energy Sdn Bhd to charter 
offshore workover unit to Petronas Carigali Sdn Bhd

25-JAN-06

Received Asiamoney’s Best Corporate Awards For 
Excellence

08-FEB-06

Set up joint venture company with Tat Hong Holdings 
Ltd to procure and manage oilfi eld equipment to Sky 
China Petroleum Services Ltd
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

TAN KIM SENG
Chairman

Mr Tan is the founder of the Group. He started the industrial 
hardware business in 1974 and subsequently expanded 
its range of businesses to oil & gas equipment, hydraulic 
equipment, spares and parts, and instrumentation. With more 
than 30 years of experience in the trading business, he plays 
an important role in setting the Group’s business strategy 
and direction. Mr Tan is also an active grassroots leader. He is 
currently the Patron of Hong Kah North Citizens’ Consultative 
Committee, and has been conferred a Public Service Star Medal 
(BBM) by The President of Singapore. Mr Tan holds a Bachelor 
of Science (Mathematics) degree from Nanyang University.

CHEW THIAM KENG 
Managing Director/ Chief Executive Offi cer

Mr Chew is overall in charge of the Group’s operations, 
particularly in strategic planning, corporate management and 
business development. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Chew 
was the Executive Director of another listed company (SGX-
Main Board) between 1996 and November 2001. Before that, 
Mr Chew was with The Development Bank of Singapore 
Limited for nine years working in the areas of banking such 
as corporate fi nance and retail banking. He is also a director 
and audit committee member of several listed companies. 
He holds a MBA from University of Hull and a Bachelor’s 
degree (Honours) in Mechanical Engineering from National 
University of Singapore. 

GOH BOON CHYE 
Executive Director 

Mr Goh joined the Group in 1999, he is currently the Chief 
Business Development Officer, responsible to grow the 
Group’s core businesses in new markets around the world. 
He also oversees the Group’s investments in related & new 
businesses. Mr Goh was the Chief Financial Offi cer in 1999. 
On 29 November 2002, Mr Goh was promoted to be the 

Chief Operating Offi cer. Prior to 1998, Mr Goh held the 
post of Financial Controller in Parker Hannifi n Pte Ltd and 
Motorola Electronics Pte Ltd. Prior to joining the Group, 
Mr Goh was involved in fi nance and general management 
positions for several companies in Singapore, Malaysia,  
Vietnam and Myanmar. Mr Goh graduated from University 
of Singapore in 1976 with a Bachelor of Accountancy Degree 
and is a Certifi ed Accountant by profession. He also holds 
a MBA from Oklahoma City University.

TAN FUH GIH
Executive Director

Mr Tan joined the Group in 1978 and was instrumental in the 
Group’s expansion into the oil & gas industry in the 1980s. 
Mr Tan is the founder of the Projects Division which handles 
all the projects based procurement & supply to the oil & gas 
major players. Subsequently, Mr Tan became the President of 
Corporate Development, which eventually brought in a series 
of rig business to the Group. He is responsible for business & 
product development and liaison with strategic partners & key 
customers. Mr Tan graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce 
(Honours) degree from Nanyang University and he also holds 
a MBA from the National University of Singapore.

LIM JIT POH 
Independent Director

Mr Lim Jit Poh was appointed a Non-Executive Director of 
the Group on 1 September 2005. He also serves as Chairman 
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration 
Committee and the Nominating Committee. Mr Lim is 
the Chairman of ComfortDelGro Corporation Limited, 
SBS Transit Ltd, VICOM Ltd, Ascott Residence Trust 
Management Limited and China Aviation Oil (Singapore) 
Corporation Limited, as well as a Director of several other 
listed companies. Mr Lim was a former top Civil Servant and 
a Fulbright Scholar. He was awarded the Public Administration 
Medal by the Government of Singapore in 1972 and three 
awards by the National Trades Union Congress, namely, 

TAN KIM SENG  CHEW THIAM KENG GOH BOON CHYE TAN FUH GIH
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SH. FAISAL F. AL–THANI

Friend of Labour Award in 1986, Meritorious Service Award 
in 1990 and Distinguished Service Award in 2000. Mr Lim is 
a Trustee of the Singapore National Employers Federation. 
Mr Lim holds a Bachelor of Science (Honours) in Physics from 
the University of Singapore and a Masters of Education from 
the University of Oregon, USA.

LEE BENG CHENG, BILLY 
Independent Director

Mr Lee has extensive experience in the oil & gas and marine 
industries, having worked in the oil refi ning and petrochemical 
sectors, offshore drilling rig and platform construction including 
drilling several oil & gas wells both onshore and offshore in Asia. 
He held senior positions in several public-listed and private 
entities in the hydrocarbon industry in Singapore, Malaysia and 
China including Vice Chairman of the listed Shenzhen-Chiwan 
Petroleun Supply Base, Chairman of Singapore Offshore 
Petroleum Supply Base, President of Sembawang Marine & 
Logistics Ltd (formerly known as Sembawang Maritime Ltd), 
Managing Director of Hong Kong listed Promet Petroleum 
Ltd. Mr Lee holds a First Class Honours degree in Mechanical 
Engineering and a Master of Science (with distinction) from 
Leeds University, UK. He is also member of the Singapore 
Institute of Management, the Institute of Engineers, Singapore, 
and the Singapore Institute of Directors.

WONG MENG YENG 
Independent Director 

Mr  Wong has been an advocate and solicitor in Singapore since 
1984 of which the last 16 years were spent as a corporate 
lawyer. He is currently a director of Alliance LLC, a law 
corporation he co-founded and an Independent Director 
of several companies listed on the Singapore Exchange. 
Mr Wong graduated from the National University of Singapore 
in 1983 with a Bachelor of Laws (Honours) degree.

LIM HO SENG
Independent Director

Mr Lim is an Independent Director and a member of the 
Audit, Remuneration and Nominating Committees of the 
Group. He was appointed our independent Non Executive 
Director on 1 September 2005. He is the Chairman of Want 
Want Foundation Ltd, Baker Technology Ltd, and Sim Siang 
Choon Ltd and sits on the Board of several other public 
companies listed on the Stock Exchange of Singapore. He was 
the former Chief Executive Offi cer of NTUC Fairprice Co-
operative Ltd. Mr Lim is a Fellow of the Institute of Certifi ed 
Public Accountants Singapore, the Institute of Certifi ed Pubic 
Accountants Australia, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries 
& Administrators and the Singapore Institute of Directors.

SH. FAISAL F. AL–THANI
Independent Director

Sheikh Al-Thani was appointed a Non-Executive Director of 
the Group on 20 January 2006. He has 19 years of working 
experience in the oil & gas industry in Qatar. He started his 
career in 1987 with state-owned Qatar Petroleum and spent 
more than a decade working there before being seconded to 
Arco Qatar and British Petroleum in Qatar. In 2002, Sheikh 
Al-Thani assumed his present position as Deputy General 
Manager and Qatar Petroleum’s representative at Anadarko 
Qatar Energy Co. LLC, a subsidiary of US-based public-listed 
Anadarko Petroleum Corporation, a “Fortune 500” oil & gas 
exploration and production company with assets in excess 
of US$20 billion. Sheikh Al-Thani is the Chairman of both 
Namma Real Estate Company and Qatar National Export 
Import Company. He is a prolifi c author and has published 
numerous books on risk management and trends in the oil & 
gas industry in the Middle East. He is also the current Chairman 
of the Society of Petroleum Engineers in Qatar. Sheikh Al-Thani, 
a Fulbright scholar, completed his fi rst degree in Petroleum 
Engineering at the University of Tulsa, Oklahoma followed by 
a Masters in Project Management at the University of Bath as 
well as a PhD in Project Finance at Leeds University, UK.

LIM JIT POH LEE BENG CHENG, BILLY WONG MENG YENG LIM HO SENG
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COMPANY KEY EXECUTIVES

WOO PENG KONG
Chief Operating Offi cer 

Mr Woo joined the Group in 2004 when the GlobalTech 
group of companies, which he co-founded in 2002, became 
its subsidiaries. Appointed subsequently as Chief Operating 
Officer of the Group, He takes charge of the business 
operations and leads the high-valued capital equipment projects 
for the Group. An engineer by profession, Mr Woo has more 
than 25 years of experience in the oil & gas, and marine industry, 
assuming diversifi ed senior managerial roles in engineering, 
sales & marketing, new business start-up and joint-ventures 
with particular expertise in business operations and fi nancial 
management. Mr Woo holds a 1st Class Honours Bachelor 
Degree in Mechanical Engineering from the University of 
Singapore, and a Certifi ed Diploma in Accounting & Finance 
from the Chartered Association of Certifi ed Accountants.

LEONG KOK HO
Chief Financial Offi cer  

Mr Leong joined the Group in 2002. He has more than 
18 years of experience in auditing and commercial accounting 
experience in manufacturing and trading environment. 
Mr Leong holds a Bachelor of Accountancy (National University 
of Singapore) and MBA (University of Southern Queensland). 
He is also a CPA and FCPA of the Institute of Certifi ed Public 
Accountants of Singapore.

TAN HOO LANG
President of Instrumentation & Hydraulic Division 

Mr Tan was previously the Managing Director of the Group. 
In 1976, he founded the Group’s hydraulic equipment and 
instrumentation as well as spares and parts trading business. 
Under his management, the Group has grown to be one of 
the major distributors of hydraulic equipment to the marine, 
shipbuilding and heavy industries. He was also responsible 
for expanding the Group’s business into the activity of 
supplying UHP products to the semi-conductor industry. 
Mr Tan graduated from Nanyang University with a Bachelor 
of Arts Degree.

TAN WEI MIN
President of Valves & Projects Divisions 

Mr Tan joined the Group in 1994 and started the Valves 
division. In year 2000, Mr Tan secured the master stocking 
distribution agency from Velan Valves for South East Asia 
region. Velan Valves is a world’s leading manufacturer of 
industrial valves for the petrochemical, oil & gas industry. Since, 
KS Energy has become one of the leading valves specialists in 
the region. Subsequently, Mr Tan has taken over the Project 
Division, which handles all project based procurement and 
supply to major oil & gas players. Mr Tan graduated from the 
Kingston University in the United Kingdom with a Bachelor of 
Science (Honours) Degree in Information Technology.

BOEY KENG CHEW
Director of Strategic Planning & Projects 

Mr Boey joined the Group in 2005. He has rich experience 
in the public and private sectors. Prior to joining the Group, 
he was the Chief Representative of Singapore Technologies 
in Beijing and had served in the Singapore Chamber of 
Commerce & Industry in China as well as the Singapore-
Shandong Business Council. He graduated with a Bachelor 
of Commerce degree from Nanyang University, and holds a 
Chartered Company Secretary qualifi cation and a Diploma in 
Investment Analysis.

WOO PENG KONG TAN HOO LANG TAN WEI MIN BOEY KENG CHEWLEONG KOK HO ENG CHIAW KOON
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ENG CHIAW KOON
CEO and Director, Aqua-Terra Supply Co. Limited 

Mr Eng joined the Group in 2003. He has a wide variety 
of marketing and management experience in electronics 
manufacturing, trading, agriculture and marine industries. 
He graduated with Diploma in Mechanical Engineering from 
Singapore Polytechnic.

ERNEST LAU
Director, GlobalTech Systems Engineering Pte Ltd 

Mr Lau join in the Group in 2004. He has more than 14 years 
of working experience in the Modular Skid System Integration 
for the oil & gas and marine industries. He has a diploma in 
Mechanical Engineering from Singapore Polytechnic and a 
Business Degree in Sales & Marketing from Royal Melbourne 
Institute of Technology University. 

RAYMOND NEO KOK KIAN
GM of Instrumentation & Hydraulic Division 

Mr Neo joined the Group in 1983. He has more than 22 years 
of experience in the hydraulic equipment, instrumentation, 
spares and parts trading business. He was instrumental 
in building up the Group’s business, agencies & marketing 
network.

GWEN TOH CHIN TUAN
GM of Projects Division 

Ms Toh joined the Group in 1988. She has more than 
18 years experience in handling project in oil & gas industry, 
particular in the project-based and tender procurement. 
Ms Toh holds a Diploma in Business Administration & 
Marketing.

VINCENT LIM CHEE HONG
Head of Valve Division 

Mr Lim joined the Group in 2000. He has more than 16 years 
experience in valve industry and helped to set up the valves 
division of the Group. He has a wide experience working 
with MNC and agency business. Mr Lim holds Diploma in 
Marketing (CIMUK).

JIANG YAN
Senior Marketing Manager  

Mr Jiang joined the Group in 2002. He is in charge of 
technical sales and sales support for the oil & gas and marine 
industries. He has more than 21 years of experience in 
the marketing and research work in the marine industry. 
Later, he extended his coverage to the oil and gas industry. 
He graduated from Naval Engineering Institute, PRC with a 
Bachelor Degree of Engineering, and holds a MBA degree from 
University of Leicester, UK.

ERNEST LAU RAYMOND NEO KOK KIAN GWEN TOH CHIN TUAN VINCENT LIM CHEE HONG  JIANG YAN
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KS Energy is committed to adopting the standards of good corporate governance and taking steps towards achieving 
full compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance (“Code”).

The Company’s corporate governance practices are described with specifi c reference to the Code.  The principles identifi ed 
at each section refer to the principles of the Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Principle 1: Board’s Conduct of its Affairs
The Board’s primary role is to protect and enhance long-term shareholders’ value. It sets the overall strategy for the Company 
and supervises the management of the Company (the “Management”). It is also responsible for the overall corporate 
governance of the Company including setting its strategic direction, establishing goals for the Management and monitoring 
the achievement of these goals.  

Major investments and funding decisions are approved by the Board. The Board also reviews the Company’s fi nancial 
performance and internal control procedures.

Principle 2: Board Composition and Balance
The Board of Directors comprises nine directors, fi ve of whom are independent. The Nominating Committee reviews the 
independence of each director annually and applies the Code’s defi nition of what qualifi es as an independent director in its 
review. Key information about the directors is detailed in the “Board of Directors” section of the annual report.

The Directors of the Company in offi ce at the date of this report are:

Executive:    Independent:
Mr Tan Kim Seng  Mr Lim Jit Poh
Mr Chew Thiam Keng  Mr Lee Beng Cheng, Billy
Mr Goh Boon Chye  Mr Wong Meng Yeng
Mr Tan Fuh Gih Mr Lim Ho Seng
     Mr Sheikh Faisal F.J.  Althani

The Board draws from a broad spectrum of competencies from the oil and gas industry, senior management from listed 
company, banking, legal and accounting professionals.

Principle 3: Chairman and CEO
The Chairman and CEO of the Company are separate individuals. As the most senior executive in the Company, the 
CEO bears executive responsibility for the Company’s business, while the Chairman bears responsibility for the workings of 
the Board. The Chairman and the CEO are not related.

The Chairman ensures that board meetings are held when necessary and sets the board meeting agenda in consultation 
with the CEO.  The Chairman reviews most board papers before they are presented to the Board and ensures that board 
members are provided with complete, adequate and timely information.  As a general rule, board papers are sent to directors 
in advance in order for directors to be adequately prepared for the meeting. Management staff who can provide additional 
insight into the matters to be discussed, are invited as and when necessary, to attend at the relevant time during the 
board meetings.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Principle 6: Access to Information
Principal 10: Accountability
The Board has separate and independent access to senior management of the Company. Requests for information from 
the Board are dealt with promptly. The Board is informed of all material events and transactions as and when they 
occur. Professional advisors may be appointed to advise the Board if the Board or any individual member thereof needs 
independent professional advice.

The company secretary attends all board meetings and is responsible for ensuring that board procedures are followed. 
Together with the management staff of the Company, the company secretary is responsible for compliance with the Companies 
Act and all other rules and regulations which are applicable to the Company.

The number of board meetings held in the year and meetings of the specialised committees established by the Board are 
as follows:

Board
Nominating 
Committee Audit Committee 

Remuneration 
Committee

Name of Director

No. of 
Meetings 

Held Attendance

No. of 
Meetings 

Held Attendance

No. of 
Meetings 

Held Attendance

No. of 
Meetings 

Held Attendance

Mr Tan Kim Seng
(Alternate Director:
 Mr Tan Hoo Lang) Note 1

3 3 3 3 NA NA NA NA

Mr Chew Thiam Keng 3 3 NA NA NA NA NA NA

Mr Tan Fuh Gih
(Alternate Director:
 Mr Tan Wei Min) Note 1

3 3 NA NA NA NA NA NA

Mr Goh Boon Chye
(Alternate Director:
 Mr Woo Peng Kong) Note 1

3 3 NA NA NA NA NA NA

Mr Lim Jit Poh Note 2 3 1 3 2 4 2 1 1

Mr Wong Meng Yeng 3 3 3 3 4 4 1 1

Mr Lee Beng Cheng, Billy 3 3 3 3 4 4 1 1

Mr Lim Ho Seng Note 3 3 1 3 2 4 2 1 1

Mr Sheikh Faisal F.J. 
Althani Note 4

3 – NA NA NA NA NA NA

Mr Chew Heng Ching Note 5 3 2 3 1 4 2 1 1

Note 1  Mr Tan Hoo Lang, Mr Tan Wei Min and Mr Woo Peng Kong resigned on 1 September 2005.
Note 2  Mr Lim Jit Poh was appointed as a director, Chairman of Audit Committee; and member of the Nominating Committee and
  Remuneration Committee on 1 September 2005.  
Note 3  Mr Lim Ho Seng was appointed as a director and member of the Audit Committee, Nominating Commitee and Remuneration 
  Committee on 1 September 2005.
Note 4  Mr Sheikh Faisal F.J. Althani was appointed as a director on 20 January 2006.
Note 5  Mr Chew Heng Ching resigned on 1 September 2005.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Nominating Committee

Principle 4: Board Membership
The Nominating Committee comprises fi ve directors, a majority of whom, including the Chairman, is independent. 
As at the date of this Report, the Nominating Committee members are:

Mr Wong Meng Yeng  (Chairman and Independent Director)
Mr Lee Beng Cheng, Billy  (Independent Director)
Mr Lim Jit Poh (Independent Director)
Mr Lim Ho Seng (Independent Director)
Mr Tan Kim Seng  (Executive Director)

Duties and functions of the Nominating Committee are as follows:

a.  to make recommendations to the Board on all board appointments and re-nomination having regard to the director’s 
contribution and performance (e.g. attendance, preparedness, participation, candour and any other salient factors);

b.  to ensure that all directors should be required to submit themselves for re-nomination and re-election at regular intervals 
and at least every three years;

c. to determine annually whether a director is independent, bearing in mind the relationships which would deem a director 
not to be independent;

Every director shall, upon appointment and subsequently on an annual basis, submit to the Company Secretary, a return 
in the form set out, as to his independence. The Nominating Committee shall review the returns and recommend to the 
Board as to whether the director is to be considered independent;

An independent member shall notify the Board immediately, if, as a result of a change in circumstances, he no longer 
meets the criteria for independence. The Nominating Committee shall review the change in circumstances and make its 
recommendation to the Board;

d.  to decide whether a director is able to and has adequately carried out his duties as a director of the Company in particular 
where the director concerned has multiple board representations. Where possible, the Nominating Committee shall 
formulate internal guidelines that can address the competing time commitments that are faced when directors serve on 
multiple boards; and

e.  to decide how the Board’s performance may be evaluated and propose objective performance criteria. Such performance 
criteria, that allow comparison with its industry peers, should be approved by the Board and address how the Board has 
enhanced long term shareholders’ value. These performance criteria should not be changed from year to year and where 
circumstances deem it necessary for any of the criteria to be changed, the onus should be on the Board to justify such 
changes.

Principle 5: Board Performance
If a director is to be re-appointed, the Nominating Committee will evaluate the performance of the director.  The Nominating 
Committee will assess each director’s contribution to the Board. The guidelines for assessment include the attendance record 
at meetings of the Board and its committees, the level and quality of participation during the meetings and any other special 
contributions.

The Board’s overall performance will be evaluated by the Nominating Committee. The criteria for assessment included the 
success of the strategies and long-term goals set by the Board, return on equity, and the level of success in tracking the 
management’s performance against the goals set by the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Principle 11: Audit Committee
Principle 12: Internal Controls
Principle 13: Internal Audits
The Audit Committee comprises four directors, all of whom are independent.   At the date of this report, the Audit Committee 
comprises the following members:

Mr Lim Jit Poh   (Chairman and Independent Director)
Mr Wong Meng Yeng  (Independent Director)
Mr Lee Beng Cheng, Billy  (Independent Director)
Mr Lim Ho Seng  (Independent Director)

The Audit Committee performs the following main functions:

a.  review with the external auditors the audit plan, their evaluation of the system of Group’s internal accounting controls, 
their audit report and the related management’s response;

b.  review the half yearly and annual fi nancial statements and related footnotes before submission to the Board for approval, 
focusing in particular, on changes in accounting policies and practices adopted, major risk areas, signifi cant adjustments 
resulting from the audit, the going concern statement, compliance with accounting standards as well as compliance with 
any stock exchange and statutory/regulatory requirements;

c.  review the internal control and procedures and ensure co-ordination between the external auditors and the management, 
review the assistance given by management to the auditors and discuss problems and concerns, if any, arising from the 
interim and fi nal audits, and any matters which the auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of management where 
necessary);

d.  review and discuss with the external auditors any suspected fraud or irregularity, or suspected infringement of any relevant 
laws, rules or regulations, which has or is likely to have a material impact on the Group’s operating results or fi nancial 
position, and the management’s response;

e.  consider the appointment or re-appointment of the external auditors, approval of the audit fee, and matters relating to 
the resignation or dismissal of the auditors;

f.  review transactions falling within the scope of the SGX-ST Listing Manual, in particular matters pertaining to, Interested 
Person Transactions and Acquisitions and Realisations;

g.  undertake such other reviews and projects as may be requested by the Board and report to the Board its fi ndings from 
time to time on matters arising and requiring the attention of the Audit Committee; and

h.  generally undertake such other functions and duties as may be required by statute or the SGX-ST Listing Manual, and 
by such amendments made thereto from time to time.

The Audit Committee has carried out a review of all interested person transactions in FY 2005.

The Group’s internal controls and systems are designed to provide reasonable assurance to the integrity and reliability of 
the fi nancial information.

The internal auditor’s primary line of reporting is to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Key business risks identifi ed in 
the course of the audit and alignment plans to address these risks are communicated to management accordingly and tabled 
for discussion at Audit Committee meetings with updates by management on the status of these action plans.  
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The internal auditor will obtain professional service from external accounting fi rms to conduct internal audit assignments 
of foreign subsidiaries, from time to time. The Board is satisfi ed that the existing controls are adequate.

The Audit Committee meets with the external and internal auditors, without the presence of management, at least 
once annually.

The Audit Committee confi rms that it has undertaken a review of all non-audit services provided by the external auditors and 
is satisfi ed that such services would not, in the Audit Committee’s opinion, affect the independence of the external auditors, 
and recommends to the Board of Directors, the nomination of the external auditors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Principe 7: Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies
Principle 8: Level and Mix of Remuneration
Principle 9: Disclosure on Remuneration
The Remuneration Committee has four members, all of whom are non-executive directors who are independent of Management 
and free from any business or other relationships, which may materially interfere with the exercise of their independent 
judgment. As at the date of this Report, the Remuneration Committee members are:

Mr Lee Beng Cheng, Billy   (Chairman and Independent Director)
Mr Wong Meng Yeng (Independent Director)
Mr Lim Jit Poh (Independent Director)
Mr Lim Ho Seng (Independent Director)

Duties and powers of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

a.  to recommend to the Board a framework of remuneration for the Board and key executives;

b.  to determine specifi c remuneration packages for each executive director. The Remuneration Committee will cover all 
aspects of remuneration including but not limited to directors’ fees, salaries, allowances, bonus, options and benefi ts in 
kind. In setting remuneration packages, the Remuneration Committee will be aware of pay and employment conditions 
within the industry and in comparable companies. The remuneration packages should take into account the Company’s 
relative performance and the performance of individual directors;

c.  in the case of service contracts of directors, to review and to recommend to the Board the terms of renewal of 
service contracts;

d.  the Remuneration Committee’s recommendations will be made in consultation with the Chairman of the Board and 
submitted for endorsement by the entire Board.  The Board will recommend the remuneration of non-executive directors 
for approval at the Annual General Meeting;

e.  to retain such professional consultancy fi rm as the committee may deem necessary to enable it to discharge its duties 
hereunder satisfactorily;

f.  to consider the various disclosure requirements for directors’ remuneration, particularly those required by regulatory 
bodies such as the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, and ensure that there is adequate disclosure in the 
fi nancial statements to ensure and enhance transparency between the Company and relevant interested parties; and

g. to carry out such other duties as may be agreed to by the Remuneration Committee and the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors of the Company receiving remuneration for this fi nancial year:

Breakdown of the directors’ remuneration

Salary 
& CPF 

(%)
Fee 
(%)

Bonus 
& CPF 

(%)

Other 
Benefi ts 

(%)
Total
 (%)

$250,000 to below $500,000

Mr Tan Kim Seng 58 – 39 3 100

Mr Chew Thiam Keng 68 – 29 3 100

Mr Tan Fuh Gih 60 – 40 – 100

Below $250,000

Mr Goh Boon Chye 76 – 24 – 100

Mr Chew Heng Ching (note 1) – 100 – – 100

Mr Lim Jit Poh (note 2) – 100 – – 100

Mr Wong Meng Yeng – 100 – – 100

Mr Lee Beng Cheng, Billy – 100 – – 100

Mr Lim Ho Seng (note 2) – 100 – – 100

Mr Sheikh Faisal F.J.  Althani (note 3) – – – – –

Mr Tan Hoo Lang (note 4) 60 – 40 – 100

Mr Tan Wei Min (note 4) 71 – 29 – 100

Mr Woo Peng Kong (note 4) 52 – 48 – 100

Note:

(1) Mr Chew Heng Ching resigned on 1 September 2005.
(2)  Mr Lim Jit Poh and Mr Lim Ho Seng were appointed as director on 1 September 2005.
(3)  Mr Sheikh Faisal F.J.  Althani was appointed as a director on 20 January 2006.  
(4)  Mr Tan Hoo Lang, Mr Tan Wei Min and Mr Woo Peng Kong resigned as alternate directors on 1 September 2005.  The remuneration 

breakdown of Mr Tan Hoo Lang, Mr Tan Wei Min & Mr Woo Peng Kong as directors during the eight months period before their 
stepping down is as refl ected in the table above.

Executive Directors are not paid director’s fees. Non-executive directors are paid director’s fees, subject to approval at the AGM. 
Such fees are approved by the shareholders of the Company as a lump sum at the AGM of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

KSAR'05 P25-88CR12.indd   31KSAR'05 P25-88CR12.indd   31 3/31/06   9:51:21 AM3/31/06   9:51:21 AM



32
KS ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Principle 14: Communication with Shareholders
Principle 15: Greater Shareholder Participation
The Company’s results are published through the SGXNET and news releases. All information on the Company’s 
new initiatives and material events are fi rst disseminated via SGXNET, followed usually by a news release.

The Company does not practice selective disclosure. Price sensitive information is fi rst publicly released, either before 
the Company meets with any group of analysts or simultaneously with such meetings. Results and annual reports are announced 
or issued within the mandatory period.

All shareholders of the Company receive the annual report and notice of AGM.  At  AGMs, shareholders are given the 
opportunity to air their views and ask directors or management questions regarding the Company.

The Articles allow a member of the Company to appoint not more than two proxies to attend and vote instead of 
the member.

DEALINGS IN SECURITIES

The Company has adopted the recommendations of SGX’s Best Practices Guide on Dealings in Securities in relation to 
its policy on Directors, offi cers and employees dealing in the Company’s shares.  The Company issues notices to its Directors, 
offi cers and employees to state that there must be no dealings in the Company’s shares whilst they are in possession 
of unpublished material price sensitive information and during the period commencing one month before the release of 
any of the Company’s periodic fi nancial results and ending on the date of announcement of such fi nancial results.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There are no material contracts made by the Company and its subsidiaries involving the interest of the chief executive offi cer, 
each director or controlling shareholder, either still subsisting at the end of the fi nancial year or if not then subsisting, entered 
into since the end of the previous fi nancial year.

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

The Group has established procedures to ensure that all transactions with interested persons are reported in a timely 
manner to the Audit Committee and that the transactions are on an arms’ length basis.

The aggregate value of the interested person transactions entered during the fi nancial year under review is as follows:

Name of interested person

Aggregate value of all 
interested person transactions 

during the fi nancial period 
under review (excluding 

transactions less than $100,000 
and transactions conducted 

under shareholders’ mandate 
pursuant to Rule 920)

Aggregate value of all 
interested person transactions 
conducted under shareholders’ 
mandate pursuant to Rule 920 

(excluding transactions 
less than $100,000)

2005
$

2004
$

2005
$

2004
$

Kim Seng Holdings Pte Ltd,
-  Tan Kim Seng
-  Tan Fuh Gih

734,566 841,364 – –

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005 

We are pleased to submit this annual report to the members of the Company, together with the audited fi nancial statements 
for the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005.

DIRECTORS

The directors in offi ce at the date of this report are as follows:

Tan Kim Seng 

Chew Thiam Keng 

Goh Boon Chye 

Tan Fuh Gih 

Lim Jit Poh   (Appointed on 1 September 2005)

Lee Beng Cheng, Billy

Wong Meng Yeng 

Lim Ho Seng  (Appointed on 1 September 2005) 

Sheikh Faisal F.J. Althani (Appointed on 20 January 2006)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
According to the register kept by the Company for the purposes of Section 164 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”), 
particulars of interests of directors who held offi ce at the end of the fi nancial year (including those held by their spouses and 
infant children) in shares, debentures, warrants and share options in the Company and in related corporations (other than 
wholly-owned subsidiaries) are as follows:

Direct Deemed

Name of director and corporation 
in which interest are held

Holdings 
at beginning 
of the year

Holdings 
at end 

of the year

Holdings 
at beginning 
of the year

Holdings 
at end 

of the year

The Company
Ordinary shares of S$0.10 each

Tan Kim Seng – – 66,950,000 78,408,000

Tan Fuh Gih – – 66,950,000 78,408,000

Subsidiary
- Aqua-terra Supply Co. Limited
Ordinary shares of S$0.04 each

Goh Boon Chye 661,000 – – –

By virtue of Section 7 of the Act,  Tan Kim Seng and Tan Fuh Gih are deemed to have interests in the shares held by the 
Company in all its subsidiaries at the beginning and at the end of the fi nancial year.

Except as disclosed in this report, no director who held offi ce at the end of the fi nancial year had interests in shares, debentures, 
warrants or share options of the Company, or of related corporations, either at the beginning of the fi nancial year, or date of 
appointment if later, or at the end of the fi nancial year.

There were no changes in any of the above-mentioned interests in the Company between the end of the fi nancial year and 
21 January 2006.
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Neither at the end of, nor at any time during the fi nancial year, was the Company a party to any arrangement whose objects 
are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefi ts by means of the acquisition of 
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Except as disclosed in this report and in notes 5 and 28 to the accompanying fi nancial statements, since the end of the last 
fi nancial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefi t by reason of a contract made by the Company 
or a related corporation with the director, or with a fi rm of which he is a member, or with a company in which he has a 
substantial fi nancial interest.

SHARE OPTIONS

During the fi nancial year, there were:

(i) no options granted by the Company or its subsidiaries to any person to take up unissued shares in the Company or its  
 subsidiaries; and

(ii) no shares issued by virtue of any exercise of options to take up unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiaries.

As at the end of the fi nancial year, there were no unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiaries under option.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee at the date of this report comprises four members, who are independent of management within 
the meaning of Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX Listing 
Manual”):

Lim Jit Poh  (Chairman and Independent Director)

Wong Meng Yeng (Independent Director)

Lee Beng Cheng, Billy (Independent Director)

Lim Ho Seng  (Independent Director)

The Audit Committee held four meetings since the last directors’ report. In performing its functions, the Audit Committee 
met with the management and the Company’s internal and external auditors to discuss and review the following:

-  the audit plans of the Company’s internal and external auditors, and the results of their examination and evaluation 
of the Group’s systems of internal accounting controls;

- the scope and results of the internal audit procedures;

-  the Group’s fi nancial and operating results and accounting policies; 

-  that no restrictions were being placed by the management upon the work of the internal and external auditors;

- the Group’s transactions with related parties and interested persons (as defined in Chapter 9 of the SGX 
Listing Manual);

-  the annual and interim fi nancial statements to be announced to shareholders before their submission to the Board of 
Directors for adoption; and

-  the independence of the external auditors.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005 

The Audit Committee performed the functions specifi ed in Section 201B of the Act, the SGX Listing Manual and Best Practices 
Guide, and the Code of Corporate Governance.  This included a review of the fi nancial statements of the Group and the 
Company for the year ended 31 December 2005 and the auditors’ report thereon.  

The Audit Committee is authorized to investigate any matters within its terms of reference, has full access to management 
and also full discretion to invite any director or executive offi cer to attend its meetings, as well as reasonable resources to 
enable it to discharge its functions properly.

The Audit Committee reviewed the independence of the external auditors as required under Section 206(1A) of the Act and 
determined that the external auditors were independent in carrying out their audit of the fi nancial statements of the Group 
and the Company.

The Audit Committee is satisfi ed with the independence and objectivity of the external auditors and has recommended to 
the Board of Directors that the auditors, KPMG, be nominated for re-appointment as auditors at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting of the Company.

AUDITORS

At the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 23 September 2005, KPMG were appointed as the auditors of the Company.  
KPMG have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

_________________________

TAN KIM SENG
Director

_________________________

CHEW THIAM KENG
Director

Singapore
31 March 2006
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In our opinion:

(a)  the fi nancial statements set out on pages 38 to 82 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2005 and of the results and cash fl ows of the Group 
and of the changes in equity of the Group and of the Company for the year ended on that date; and

(b)  at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they fall due.

The Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised these fi nancial statements for issue.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

_________________________

TAN KIM SENG
Director

_________________________

CHEW THIAM KENG
Director

Singapore
31 March 2006

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005 
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS 
to the members of KS Energy Services Limited

We have audited the accompanying fi nancial statements of KS Energy Services Limited for the year ended 31 December 
2005 as set out on pages 38 to 82. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s directors. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi nancial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial statements are free of material misstatement.  
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fi nancial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the directors, 
as well as evaluating the overall fi nancial statements presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinion.

In our opinion:

(a)  the consolidated fi nancial statements of the Group and the balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of the 
Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) 
and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the 
Company as at 31 December 2005 and of the results and cash fl ows of the Group and of the changes in equity 
of the Group and of the Company for the year ended on that date; and

(b)  the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those subsidiaries incorporated 
in the Republic of Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act.

KPMG
Certifi ed Public Accountants

Singapore
31 March 2006
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005 

          Group
         Note 2005 2004
          $’000 $’000

Revenue      3 269,081 95,253
Cost of sales      (210,102) (64,809)
Gross profi t     58,979 30,444
Other operating income     17,185 8,609
Distribution costs     (17,643) (8,314)
Administrative expenses     (8,942) (6,089)
Other operating expenses     (9,416) (6,671)
Profi t from operations    4 40,163 17,979
Finance costs     6 (1,783) (662)
Share of results of associates     661 1,551
Share of results of jointly controlled entities     2,497 (35)
Profi t before tax     41,538 18,833
Income tax expense    7 (4,444) (2,150)
Profi t for the year     37,094 16,683
   
Attributable to:    
Equity holders of the parent      33,604 16,271
Minority interests     3,490 412
Profi t for the year      37,094 16,683
   
Earnings per share (cents):   
Basic and diluted     8 17.05 8.84

The accompanying notes form an intergral part of these fi nancial statements.
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BALANCE SHEETS
As at 31 December 2005 

        Group Company
       Note 2005 2004 2005 2004
         (Restated)  
        $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Current assets     
Cash and cash equivalents  9 83,111 27,042 62,988 16,294
Other investments  10 – 176 – 101
Amounts due from subsidiaries  11 – – 7,184 8,512
Trade receivables  12 47,122 33,841 8,660 7,521
Inventories   13 42,859 36,370 18,856 17,015
Other current assets   14 21,758 11,788 9,547 4,311
        194,850 109,217 107,235 53,754
Non-current assets     
Other investments  10 27,900 6,169 27,900 6,169
Associates and jointly controlled entities  15 2,698 1,625 191 –   
Subsidiaries   16 – –    10,429 13,027
Property, plant and equipment  17 10,878 8,932 1,217 1,484
Goodwill    18 5,734 4,837 – –   
Other non-current assets  19 494 694 494 694
        47,704 22,257 40,231 21,374
Total assets     242,554 131,474 147,466 75,128
     
Current liabilities     
Trade and other payables   20 87,042 49,388 15,070 9,257
Amounts due to subsidiaries  21 – – – 398
Provision for current tax   5,621 2,173 3,289 1,044
Borrowings     22 17,536 15,706 6,225 3,204
        110,199 67,267 24,584 13,903
Non-current liabilities     
Trade and other payables  20 3,590 5,570 – –   
Amounts due to subsidiaries  21 – – 38,561 17,562
Borrowings   22 3,187 5,958 1,260 5,214
Deferred taxation   23 122 666 – 563
        6,899 12,194 39,821 23,339
Total liabilities    117,098 79,461 64,405 37,242
Net assets     125,456 52,013 83,061 37,886
     
Equity attributable to equity holders 
 of the parent      
Share capital   24 19,848 12,783 19,848 12,783
Share premium   25 10,099 8,299 10,099 8,299
Foreign currency translation reserve  25 (83) (207)  – –   
Fair value reserve  25 23,638 – 23,638 –   
Accumulated profi ts    55,980 27,536 29,476 16,804
       109,482 48,411 83,061 37,886
Minority interests   15,974 3,602 – –   
Total equity     125,456 52,013 83,061 37,886

The accompanying notes form an intergral part of these fi nancial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005 

The accompanying notes form an intergral part of these fi nancial statements. 

              Total
            Foreign  attributable   
            currency  to equity
          Share Share translation Accumulated holders of Minority Total 
          capital premium reserve profi ts the parent interests equity
          $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group          
At 1 January 2004  12,783 8,299 82 16,263 37,427 –    37,427
Exchange differences on 
 translation of fi nancial 
 statements of foreign 
 operations, recognised 
 directly in equity  –    –    (289) –    (289)   –    (289)
Profi t for the year  –    –    –    16,271 16,271 412 16,683
Total recognised income 
 and expense for the year –    –    (289) 16,271 15,982 412 16,394

Final dividend paid of 
 0.7 cents per share less 
 tax at 20% in respect 
 of 2003     –    –    –   (716) (716) –    (716)
Dividend in specie paid of 
 4.1874 cents per share 
 less tax at 20%  –    –    –    (4,282) (4,282) –    (4,282)
Acquisition of subsidiaries –    –    –    – – 398   398 
Capital contributions by 
 minority shareholders 
 of a subsidiary  –    –    –    –    –    2,792 2,792
At 31 December 2004 12,783 8,299 (207) 27,536 48,411 3,602 52,013
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The accompanying notes form an intergral part of these fi nancial statements. 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005 

             Fair 
           Share Share value  Accumulated Total 
          Note capital premium  reserve profi ts equity
           $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Company          
At 1 January 2004   12,783 8,299 –    11,962 33,044
Profi t for the year   –    –    –    9,840 9,840
Final dividend paid of 0.7 cents 
 per share less tax at 20% in respect 
 of 2003      –    –    –    (716) (716)
Dividend in specie paid of 
 4.1874 cents per share less tax 
 at 20%       –    –    –    (4,282) (4,282)
At 31 December 2004  12,783 8,299 –    16,804 37,886
      
At 31 December 2004, 
 as previously stated  12,783 8,299 –    16,804 37,886
Effects of adopting FRS 39  26 –    –    19,851   2,431 22,282
At 1 January 2005, restated  12,783 8,299 19,851   19,235 60,168
Change in fair value of 
 available-for-sale investments,  
 recognised directly in equity  –    –    9,901 –    9,901 
Transferred to profi t and loss  
 account on disposal of  
 available-for-sale investment  –    –    (6,114) –    (6,114)
Profi t for the year   –    –    –    15,401 15,401
Total recognised income and expense
 for the year    –    –    3,787 15,401 19,188

Issue of shares    1,000 7,900 –    –    8,900
Issue of bonus shares  6,065 (6,065) –    –    –   
Share issue expenses   –    (35) –    –    (35)
Final dividend paid of 0.8 cents 
 per share less tax at 20% in  
 respect of 2004   –    –    –    (1,058) (1,058)
Special dividend paid of 1.5 cents 
 per share less tax at 20%  –    –    –     (1,985)  (1,985)
Interim dividend paid of 1.6 cents 
 per share less tax at 20%  –    –    –    (2,117) (2,117)
At 31 December 2005  19,848 10,099 23,638 29,476 83,061
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The accompanying notes form an intergral part of these fi nancial statements. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005

                 Group
         Note 2005 2004
          $’000 $’000
   
Operating activities   
Profi t before tax       41,538 18,833
 Adjustments for:   
 Allowance for diminution in value of club membership    –    43
 Amortisation of goodwill     –    335
 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment    2,358 1,745
 Dividend income     (606) (176)
 Gain on dilution of interest in a subsidiary    (6,120) (1,343)
 Gain on partial disposal of interest in a subsidiary    –    (14)
 Gain on disposal of interest in an associate    –    (3,766)
 Gain on disposal of plant and equipment     (25) –  
 Interest income      (1,597) (323)
 Interest expense      1,783 662
 Net gain on disposal of other investments     (7,797) (2,489)
 Net loss on remeasurement of derivatives at fair value    102 – 
 Share of results of associates     (661) (1,551)
 Share of results of jointly controlled entities    (2,497) 35
Operating profi t before changes in working capital     26,478 11,991
   
Changes in working capital:   
 Inventories       (4,248) (2,247)
 Trade receivables     (5,732) (911)
 Other current assets     (8,416) (2,359)
 Trade and other payables     34,325 12,167
Cash generated from operations     42,407 18,641
Income taxes paid      (1,773) (613)
Cash fl ows from operating activities     40,634 18,028
   
Investing activities   
Payments for purchase of plant and equipment    (1,806) (5,870)
Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment    182 13
Proceeds from sale of other investments     9,880 5,764
Payments for purchase of other investments     –    (738)
Dividends received      606 417
Interest received      1,827 91
Net cash outfl ow on acquisition of subsidiaries   27 (5,084) (8,089)
Payments for investment in an associate     (1,615)    –     
Payments for investments in jointly controlled entities    (242) (1,660)   
Proceeds from partial disposal of interest in a subsidiary    –    712
Proceeds from disposal of interest in an associate    –    7,544
Repayment from/(Loan to) a third party corporation and jointly controlled  entities  4,145 (5,925)
Cash fl ows from investing activities     7,893 (7,741)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005

          Group 
         Note 2005 2004
          $’000 $’000
   
Financing activities   
(Repayments of)/Proceeds from fi nance lease liabilities    (409) 79
Proceeds from bank loans     6,527 28,105
Repayment of bank loans     (5,875) (27,513)
Due to a director of a subsidiary     (9,230) 9,230
Proceeds from issue of new shares     8,865 –
Proceeds from issue of new shares by a subsidiary to minority shareholders   15,793 344
Proceeds from the initial public offering of shares by a subsidiary, net of costs  – 3,107
Bills payable to banks     (1,208) (4,229)
Dividends paid       (5,160) (4,998)
Interest paid        (1,761) (387)
Cash fl ows from fi nancing activities     7,542 3,738
   
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents    56,069 14,025
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fi nancial year   27,042 13,017
Cash and cash equivalents at end of fi nancial year  9 83,111 27,042 

The accompanying notes form an intergral part of these fi nancial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005

These notes form an integral part of the fi nancial statements.

The fi nancial statements were authorized for issue by the directors on 31 March 2006.

1  DOMICILE AND ACTIVITIES

KS Energy Services Limited (formerly known as KS Tech Ltd) (the “Company”) is incorporated in the Republic of 
Singapore and has its registered offi ce at No. 4, Tuas Avenue 5, Singapore 639331. On 28 April 2005, the Company changed 
its name from KS Tech Ltd to KS Energy Services Limited.

The principal activities of the Company are those of trading in hydraulic products, instrumentation and equipment for the 
shipbuilding, marine and oil and gas industries, commission agents, trading in hardware products and oilfi eld equipment, 
and investment holding.  The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the fi nancial statements.

The consolidated fi nancial statements relate to the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) 
and the Group’s interests in associates and jointly controlled entities.

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 2.1  Basis of preparation
 The fi nancial statements are prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”) 
including related Interpretations (“INT FRS”) promulgated by the Council on Corporate Disclosure and 
Governance.

In 2005, the Group adopted the following new/revised FRSs which are relevant to its operations:

FRS 1 (revised)   Presentation of Financial Statements
FRS 2 (revised)  Inventories
FRS 8 (revised)  Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
FRS 10 (revised)   Events After the Balance Sheet Date
FRS 16 (revised)  Property, Plant and Equipment
FRS 17 (revised)  Leases
FRS 21 (revised)   The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
FRS 24 (revised)   Related Party Disclosures
FRS 27 (revised)   Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
FRS 28 (revised) Investments in Associates
FRS 31 (revised) Interests in Joint Ventures
FRS 32 (revised) Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation
FRS 33 (revised)  Earnings Per Share
FRS 36 (revised)  Impairment of Assets
FRS 38 (revised)  Intangible Assets
FRS 39   Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
FRS 103  Business Combinations 

 The effects of adopting the new/revised FRSs in 2005 are set out in note 26.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1  Basis of preparation (CONTINUED)

The fi nancial statements are presented in Singapore dollars and rounded to the nearest thousand, unless 
otherwise stated.  They are prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain fi nancial assets and fi nancial 
liabilities which are stated at fair value.

The preparation of fi nancial statements in conformity with FRSs requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses.  The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and 
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form 
the basis of making the judgements about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent 
from other sources.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the 
period of the revision and future periods, if the revision affects both current and future periods.

2.2  Functional and presentation currencies
Items included in the fi nancial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency that 
best refl ects the economic substance of the underlying transactions, events and conditions relevant to that 
entity (the “functional currency”).  The consolidated fi nancial statements and balance sheets of the Company 
are presented in Singapore dollars, which is the functional currency of the Company.

2.3  Consolidation
Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for under the purchase method. The cost of an acquisition is measured 
at the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the 
date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. 

The excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifi able assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is credited to the consolidated profi t and loss account in the period of 
the acquisition.

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power, 
directly or indirectly, to govern the fi nancial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefi ts from 
its activities.  In assessing whether the Company has control over an entity, potential voting rights that are 
presently exercisable or convertible are taken into consideration.  

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less impairment losses.  The 
fi nancial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated fi nancial statements from the date that 
control commences until the date that control ceases.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

 2.3  Consolidation (CONTINUED)

Associates
Associates are entities in which the Group has signifi cant infl uence, but not control, over the fi nancial and 
operating policies.  In assessing whether the Group has signifi cant infl uence over an entity, potential voting 
rights that are presently exercisable or convertible are taken into consideration.  

Investments in associates are stated in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less impairment losses.  In the 
consolidated fi nancial statements, they are accounted for using the equity method of accounting from the date 
that signifi cant infl uence commences until the date that signifi cant infl uence ceases.  When the Group’s share 
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the carrying amount of the Group’s 
interest in the associate is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent 
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Jointly controlled entities
Jointly controlled entities are entities over whose activities the Group has joint control, established by 
contractual agreements.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for using the equity method of accounting 
from the date that joint control commences until the date that joint control ceases.  When the Group’s share 
of losses in a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in the jointly controlled entity, the carrying 
amount of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity is reduced to nil and recognition of further 
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or 
made payments on behalf of the jointly controlled entity. 

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intragroup balances and any unrealized gains and losses or income and expenses arising from intragroup 
transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated fi nancial statements.  Unrealized gains arising from 
transactions with associates and jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest 
in the entity.  Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that 
there is no evidence of impairment.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities
Where necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities have been 
adjusted on consolidation to be consistent with those of the Group.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

  2.4  Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currencies of the respective entities in 
the Group at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.  Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the foreign exchange rates 
ruling at that date.  Foreign exchange differences arising from translation are recognized in the profi t and 
loss account.  Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are stated at historical cost in a foreign currency are 
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.  Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign  currencies that are stated at fair value are translated at the foreign exchange 
rates ruling at the dates that the fair value was determined.

Net investment in foreign operations
Exchange differences arising from monetary items that in substance form part of the Company’s net investment 
in foreign operations, are recognized in the Company’s profi t and loss account.  Such exchange differences 
are reclassifi ed to equity in the consolidated fi nancial statements only when the monetary item is denominated 
in either the functional currency of the Company or of the foreign operation.  Deferred exchange differences 
are released to the profi t and loss account upon disposal of the investment.

Foreign operations
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the 
acquisition of foreign operations, are translated to Singapore dollars for consolidation at the foreign exchange 
rates ruling at the balance sheet date.  The income and expenses of foreign operations (none of which has 
the currency of a hyperinfl ationary economy as its functional currency) are translated at rates approximating 
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.  Exchange differences arising on translation 
are recognized directly in equity. On disposal, accumulated translation differences are recognized in the 
consolidated profi t and loss account as part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.5  Property, plant and equipment
Owned assets
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Leased assets
Leases of assets in which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classifi ed 
as fi nance leases.  Property, plant and equipment acquired through fi nance leases are capitalized at the lower 
of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  Lease payments are apportioned between fi nance charges 
and reductions of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of 
the liability.  Finance charges are charged directly against the profi t and loss account. Capitalized leased assets 
are depreciated over the shorter of the economic useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Subsequent costs
The Group recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of replacing 
part of such an item when that cost is incurred if it is probable that the future economic benefi ts embodied 
with the item will fl ow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  All other costs are 
recognized in the profi t and loss account as an expense as incurred.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5  Property, plant and equipment (CONTINUED)

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis so as to write off items of property, plant and equipment 
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold properties Remaining lease terms of 20 and 33 years
Plant and machinery 5 to 7 years
Offi ce equipment 3 to 5 years
Renovation, furniture and fi ttings 5 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 to 7 years

The depreciation method and useful lives, as well as residual values, are reassessed annually.

2.6  Intangible assets
Goodwill
Goodwill in a business combination represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of 
the Group’s interest in the identifi able net assets acquired.  Goodwill is stated at cost less impairment losses. 
Goodwill on the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented as intangible assets. Goodwill on the acquisition of 
associates is included in investments in associates.

Goodwill is no longer amortized but is tested for impairment on an annual basis as described in note 2.15.  

Goodwill/Negative goodwill previously written off against reserves
Goodwill that has previously been taken to reserves is not taken to the consolidated profi t and loss account 
when the business is disposed of or when the goodwill is impaired.  Similarly, negative goodwill that has 
previously been taken to reserves is not taken to the consolidated profi t and loss account when the business 
is disposed of.

2.7  Investments
Investments in debt and equity securities
Financial instruments held for trading are classifi ed as current assets and are stated at fair value, with any 
resultant gain or loss recognized in the profi t and loss account. 

Where the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold debt securities to maturity, they are stated at 
amortized cost less impairment losses.

Other fi nancial instruments held by the Group are classifi ed as being available-for-sale and are stated at fair 
value, with any resultant gain or loss being recognized directly in equity, except for impairment losses and, in 
the case of monetary items such as debt securities, foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognized in 
the profi t and loss account.  When these investments are derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognized directly in equity is recognized in the profi t and loss account.  Where these investments are interest-
bearing, interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognized in the profi t and loss account.

The fair value of fi nancial instruments classifi ed as held for trading and available-for-sale is determined as their 
quoted bid price at the balance sheet date.

Financial instruments classifi ed as held for trading or available-for-sale investments are recognized by the Group 
on the date it commits to purchase the investments, and are derecognized on the date a sale is committed.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005

KSAR'05 P25-88CR12.indd   49KSAR'05 P25-88CR12.indd   49 3/31/06   9:51:36 AM3/31/06   9:51:36 AM



50
KS ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8  Derivative fi nancial instruments
Derivative fi nancial instruments are used to manage exposures to foreign exchange and interest rate risks 
arising from operational, fi nancing and investment activities.  The Group does not hold or issue derivative 
fi nancial instruments for trading purposes.  However, derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are 
accounted for as trading instruments.

Derivative fi nancial instruments are recognized initially at fair value.  Subsequent to initial recognition, 
derivative fi nancial instruments are remeasured at fair value.  The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value 
is recognized immediately in the profi t and loss account.  

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate 
the swap at the balance sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the current credit worthiness 
of the swap counterparties.  The fair value of forward exchange contracts is their quoted market price at the 
balance sheet date, being the present value of the quoted forward price.

2.9  Non-quasi equity inter-company loans
Loans to subsidiaries
In the Company’s fi nancial statements, low-interest and interest-free inter-company loans to subsidiaries are 
recognized initially at fair value.  The difference between the fair value and the loan amount at inception is 
recognized as additional investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s fi nancial statements.  Subsequent to 
initial recognition, these loans are stated at amortized cost less impairment losses.  The unwinding of the 
difference is recognized as interest income in the Company’s profi t and loss account over the expected 
repayment period of the loans using the effective interest method. 

Loans from subsidiaries
In the Company’s fi nancial statements, low-interest and interest-free inter-company loans from subsidiaries 
are recognized initially at fair value.  The difference between the fair value and the loan amount at inception 
is recognized as distributions from subsidiaries in the Company’s fi nancial statements.  Subsequent to initial 
recognition, these loans are stated at amortized cost.  The unwinding of the difference is recognized as interest 
expense in the Company’s profi t and loss account over the expected repayment period of the loans using 
the effective interest method. 

2.10 Club memberships
Club memberships are stated at cost less impairment losses.

2.11 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.  

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase and other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs 
necessary to make the sale.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.12 Contract work-in-progress
Contract work-in-progress is stated at cost plus recognized profi t less allowance for foreseeable losses less 
progress billings.  Cost includes all expenditure related directly to specifi c projects and an allocation of fi xed 
and variable overheads incurred in the Group’s contract activities based on normal operating capacity.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, an allowance for foreseeable 
losses is recognized as an expense in the profi t and loss account immediately.

Contract work-in-progress is classifi ed as current assets in the fi nancial statements.  Where progress billings 
exceed the amounts recoverable, they are classifi ed as current liabilities.

2.13 Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at amortized cost less impairment losses.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and bank deposits.  For the purpose of the consolidated 
statement of cash fl ows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts which are repayable 
on demand and which form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

2.15 Impairment
The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether 
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are 
estimated.  An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating 
unit exceeds its recoverable amount.  Impairment losses are recognized in the profi t and loss account. 

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and as and when indicators of impairment are identifi ed.  Impairment 
losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units are allocated fi rst to reduce the carrying amount of any 
goodwill allocated to cash-generating units (group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the 
other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale fi nancial asset has been recognized directly in equity and 
there is objective evidence that the value of the fi nancial asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been 
recognized directly in equity is recognized in the profi t and loss account even though the fi nancial asset has 
not been derecognized.  The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognized in the profi t and loss account 
is the difference between the acquisition cost and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that fi nancial 
asset previously recognized in the profi t and loss account.

Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of fi nancial assets carried at amortized cost is calculated as the present value 
of estimated future cash fl ows, discounted at the original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest 
rate computed at initial recognition of these fi nancial assets). Receivables with a short duration are not 
discounted.

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their net selling price and value in use. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash fl ows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that refl ects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specifi c to the asset.  
For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash infl ows, the recoverable amount is determined 
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15 Impairment (CONTINUED)

Reversals of impairment 
An impairment loss in respect of a fi nancial asset carried at amortized cost is reversed if the subsequent 
increase in recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss 
was recognized.

An impairment loss in respect of an investment in an equity instrument classifi ed as available-for-sale is not 
reversed through the profi t and loss account. If the fair value of a debt instrument classifi ed as available-for-
sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss 
was recognized in the profi t and loss account, the impairment loss shall be reversed, with the amount of the 
reversal recognized in the profi t and loss account.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.  

In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed when there is an indication that the impairment loss may 
no longer exist and there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.   

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment 
loss had been recognized.

2.16 Liabilities and interest-bearing liabilities
Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value.  Interest-bearing liabilities are recognized initially 
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other payables and interest-bearing liabilities are stated at amortized 
cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognized in the profi t and loss account 
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

2.17 Employee benefi ts
Defi ned contribution plans
Obligations for contributions to defi ned contribution pension plans are recognized as an expense in the 
profi t and loss account as incurred.

Employee leave entitlements
The equivalent cost of employees’ entitlements to annual leave as at the end of each fi nancial year is accrued 
for and charged to the profi t and loss account in the period in which the related employment services are 
rendered.

2.18  Provisions
A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation 
as a result of a past event, the obligation can be reliably estimated and it is probable that an outfl ow of 
economic benefi ts will be required to settle the obligation.  If the effect is material, provisions are determined 
by discounting the expected future cash fl ows at a pre-tax rate that refl ects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specifi c to the liability.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19  Income tax
Income tax on the profi t or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax.  Income tax is recognized 
in the profi t and loss account except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in 
which case it is recognized in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous 
years. 

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax 
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the fi nancial statements.  Temporary differences 
are not recognized on the initial recognition of goodwill and assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting 
nor taxable profi t.  The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or 
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted 
at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profi t will be 
available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.  Deferred tax assets are reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefi t will be realized.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly 
controlled entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled 
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.20 Revenue recognition
Sale of goods
Revenue is recognized when the signifi cant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 
buyer.  Revenue excludes goods and services taxes or other sales taxes and is arrived at after deduction of 
trade discounts.  No revenue is recognized if there are signifi cant uncertainties regarding recovery of the 
consideration due, associated costs or the possible return of goods.

Contract revenue
When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and costs are 
recognized in the profi t and loss account using the percentage of completion method, measured by the 
proportion of costs incurred to-date to the estimated total costs for each contract.  When the outcome of 
a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognized only to the extent of 
contract costs incurred that are probable to be recovered and contract costs are recognized in the profi t 
and loss account as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Commission income
Commission income is recognized upon completion of services rendered.

Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognized in the profi t and loss account on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.  Lease incentives granted are recognized as an integral part of the total 
rental income to be received.  Contingent rentals are recognized as income in the accounting period in which 
they are earned.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue recognition (CONTINUED)

Interest income
Interest income is recognized on a accrual basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

2.21 Operating leases
Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases, payments made under the leases are recognized 
in the profi t and loss account on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  Lease incentives received are 
recognized in the profi t and loss account as an integral part of the total lease payments made.  Contingent 
rentals are charged to the profi t and loss account in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

2.22 Finance costs
Interest expense and similar charges are expensed in the profi t and loss account in the period in which they 
are incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalized as being directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to be prepared 
for its intended use or sale.  The interest component of fi nance lease payments is recognized in the profi t 
and loss account using the effective interest method.

2.23 Segment reporting
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or services 
(business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical 
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

3  REVENUE

          Group
          2005 2004
          $’000 $’000
  

Sales of goods     251,346 79,946
Rendering of services     9,718 6,577
Commission income     527 714
Rental income     7,490 8,016
  
                   269,081            95,253

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005
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4  PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 

The following items have been included in arriving at profi t from operations:
         Group
        2005 2004
        $’000 $’000
   
Allowance for doubtful debts     914 387
Amortisation of goodwill      –      335
Non-audit fees paid and payable to auditors of the Company   – 66
Bad trade debts written-off     46 221
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense     127,338 58,035
Inventories write down     968 498
Dividend income      (606) (176)
Gain on dilution of interest in a subsidiary     (6,120) (1,343)
Gain on partial disposal of interest in a subsidiary    –      14
Gain on disposal of interest in an associate    – (3,766)
Interest income      (1,597) (323)
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains)     651 (527)
Net gain on disposal of non-current investments     (7,601) –
Net gain on disposal of current investments     (196) (2,489)
Net loss on remeasurement of derivatives at fair value   102 –
Operating lease expenses     2,442 4,176
Staff costs      11,192 10,381
Contributions to defi ned contribution plans included in staff costs   1,068 883
       
5  KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION
The key management personnel compensation is as follows:

          Group
          2005 2004

        $’000 $’000
      

Short-term employee benefi ts     2,219 1,930
Post-employment benefi ts     76 83
        2,295 2,013

Included in key management personnel compensation is remuneration of the directors amounted to $1,733,000 
(2004: 1,822,000)
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6  FINANCE COSTS

        Group
        2005 2004
        $’000 $’000
   
Interest expense:   
- Bank overdrafts     4 7
- Finance lease liabilities     60 23
- Bills payable to banks     516 267
- Bank term loans     865 362
-    Imputed interest in trade and other payables    280 –
- Others      58 3
        1,783 662

7  INCOME TAXES 

        Group
        2005 2004
        $’000 $’000

Current tax expense   
Current year     4,988 1,683
Over provided in prior years     –    (37)
        4,988 1,646
   
Deferred tax expense   
Movements in temporary differences     – 504
Over provided in prior years     (544) –   
        (544) 504
Income tax expense     4,444 2,150

  Reconciliation of effective tax rate    
    
Profi t before tax     41,538 18,833
    
Income tax using Singapore tax rates at 20%    8,308 3,767
Singapore statutory stepped income exemption    – (11)
Effect of changes in tax rates     – (7)
Income not subject to tax     (4,118) (1,917)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes    2,295 1,389
Effect of different tax rates in other countries    (1,012) (924)
Unrecognised tax losses     47 -   
Effect of income subject to concessionary tax rate    (59) (26)
Share of results of associates and jointly controlled entities   (473) (84)
Over provided in prior years     (544) (37)
        4,444 2,150
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8  EARNINGS PER SHARE

      
         2004
          As  
            previously 
       2005  2004 reported 
       $’000  $’000 $’000
 
 Group  

Basic earnings per share is based on:  
 Profi t attributable to ordinary shareholders   33,604 16,271 16,271
   
        2004
        As 
        previously
      2005 2004 reported
      No. of No. of No. of
      shares shares shares 
      (’000) (’000) (’000)

Group   
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
 in issue at the begining of the year   127,834 127,834 127,834
Weighted average number of ordinary shares issued 
 during the year    9,068 – –
Bonus shares    60,236 56,247 –   
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 
 during the year    197,138 184,081 127,834
Basic earnings per share (cents)    17.05 8.84 12.73
   
Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share as the Company does not have any dilutive 
potential ordinary shares.

9  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

      Group Company
        2005 2004 2005 2004

        $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
    

Cash and bank balances   33,310 13,220 16,210 3,776
Fixed deposits with banks   49,801 13,822 46,778 12,518
      83,111 27,042 62,988 16,294
    
The weighted average effective interest rates per annum relating to cash and cash equivalents at the balance sheet 
date for the Group and the Company are 3.32% (2004: 1.27%) and 3.35% (2004: 1.27) respectively.  Interest rates 
reprice at intervals of 1 to 3 months.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005
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10  OTHER INVESTMENTS

       Group Company
        2005 2004 2005 2004
        $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Non-current investments     
Equity securities available-for-sale   27,900 6,169 27,900 6,169
    
Current investments     
Equity securities available-for-sale   –      176 –      101

11  AMOUNT DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

          Company
          2005 2004
          $’000 $’000
  

Trade       1,014 1,035

Non-trade      6,518 7,477
Allowance for doubtful receivables     (348) –
        6,170 7,477
        7,184 8,512

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and repayable on demand. The amounts are interest-free except 
for a balance of $5,668,000 in 2004 which bore interest at the rate of 8% per annum.

12  TRADE RECEIVABLES

      Group Company
        2005 2004 2005 2004

        $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Trade receivables    49,604 35,489 9,507 8,254
Allowance for doubtful receivables   (2,482) (1,648) (847) (733)
      47,122 33,841 8,660 7,521
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13  INVENTORIES

      Group Company
        2005 2004 2005 2004

        $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
    

Finished goods, at net realisable value   42,859 36,370 18,856 17,015

14  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

      Group Company
        2005 2004 2005 2004

        $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Amounts due from jointly controlled entities  7,543 5,964 –      –     
Deposits for purchases   8,188 3,138 7,925 3,138
Deposits for purchases of plant and equipment  543 –      –      –   
Other deposits and prepayments   3,178 1,338 765 963
Other receivables   2,306 1,348 857 210
      21,758 11,788 9,547 4,311

The amounts due from jointly controlled entities are unsecured, interest free (2004: 8% per annum) and repayable 
on demand.

15  ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

       Group Company
        2005 2004 2005 2004

        $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Investments in associates   2,468    –    191    –   
Investments in jointly-controlled entities  230    1,625 –    –   
      2,698 1,625 191 –   

Investments in associates as at 31 December 2005 include goodwill of $689,000 (2004: Nil).
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15  ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Details of signifi cant associates and jointly-controlled entities are as follows:
     
Name of associates/  Country of Ownership interest
jointly controlled entities Principal activities incorporation held by the Group

          2005 2004
         % %

Associates      

Jambi Supply Base Pte Ltd 3 Supply of oil and gas  Singapore 45 45
    equipment, consumables 
    and provision of engineering 
    services

Runva Holding Pte Ltd 3 Manufacturing and Singapore 25 –
   supplying winches

M.E.I. Engineers Pte Ltd 3 Provision of consultancy Singapore 20 –
   services, engineering design 
   and procurement services  

Jointly controlled entities     

Atlantic Esbjerg Limited 2  Provision of rig services Mauritius – 50

    

AMS Denmark BV 3 Rig operator Denmark 50 50

    
Harta Offshore & Marine   Refurbishment and  Singapore 50 –
 Services Pte Ltd 1  charter of vessel

Aqua-Terra Middle East Ltd 3 Develop, own, manage and  Qatar 49 –
   operate an integrated 
   offshore supply base

New Strong Group Limited 4 Carrying out offshore and  British Virgin  50 –
   rigs services Islands

1 Audited by KPMG, Singapore
2 Audited by other member fi rms of KPMG International
3 Audited by other fi rms of Certifi ed Public Accountants
4 Newly incorporated, auditors not appointed yet

KSAR'05 P25-88CR12.indd   60KSAR'05 P25-88CR12.indd   60 3/31/06   9:51:46 AM3/31/06   9:51:46 AM



61
ANNUAL REPORT 2005

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005

15  ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

The fi nancial information of the associates and the Group’s interests in the jointly controlled entities are as follows:

      Jointly controlled  
     Associates entities
        2005 2004 2005 2004
        $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Assets and liabilities    
Non-current assets     3,061 21,728 
Current assets     8,479 2,848
Total assets    28,185 55 11,540 24,576

Non-current liabilities     (6,080) (8,593)
Current liabilities     (5,219) (14,378)
Total liabilities   (21,365) (24) (11,299) (22,971)

Results    
Revenue    30,749 – 2,523 – 
Expenses      (26) (35)
Profi t after taxation   2,565 (20) 2,497 (35)

16  SUBSIDIARIES 

          Company 
          2005 2004
          $’000 $’000
  

Unquoted shares, at cost     7,009 6,141
Quoted shares, at cost     3,420 3,420
        10,429 9,561
Non-current loan to subsidiaries      –    3,466
        10,429 13,027
  
Quoted shares, at fair value     54,293 22,229

The loans to subsidiaries as at 31 December 2004 were unsecured, interest-free and have no fi xed terms of repayment.  
These loans were fully repaid during the current year.
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16  SUBSIDIARIES – THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

  Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:    
    Country of Ownership interest
Name of subsidiaries Principal activities incorporation held by the Group

          2005 2004
         % %

Held by the Company
Kim Seng Hardware &  Assembly and trading Singapore 100 100
 Oilfi eld Supply Pte Ltd 1 of electrical engineering  
     goods, electronics appliances  
     and heavy equipment 

 
S & E Tech Pte Ltd 1 Assembly and trading   Singapore 100 100
     of electrical engineering  
     goods, electronics appliances  
     and heavy equipment  

Atlantic Esbjerg Holding Pte. Ltd.  1 Investment holding Singapore 100 80

     
Globaltech Group Pte Ltd 1 Investment holding Singapore 75 75

    
Aqua-Terra Supply Co. Limited 3 Trading in tools and  Singapore 54.81 75.66
     equipment for the marine 
     and oil and gas industries 

    
KS Equipment (Shanghai) Ltd 4 Trading in hydraulic  The People’s Republic 100 100
     products of China

   
KS Oilfi eld Support Ltd 2  Provision of marketing  Mauritius 100 100
 (formerly known as KS Tech services and project-based     
 Oilfi eld Support Ltd) procurement services

   
KS Oilfi eld Services Ltd 2  Provision of oilfi eld support  Mauritius 100 100
 (formerly known as KS Tech and consultancy services
 Oilfi eld Services Ltd)

KS Energy Services Workshop Ltd 4    Repair services, fabrication,  Vietnam 100 100
 (formerly known as KS Tech Workshop Ltd)  maintenance of pump and seals 

 
Harta Holding Pte Ltd 1 Investment holding Singapore 100 –
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16  SUBSIDIARIES – THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

      Country of  Ownership interest 
Name of subsidiaries Principal activities incorporation  held by the Group

          2005 2004
          % %

Held by the Company   
KS Oilfi eld Support  Carrying out offshore and Hong Kong  100 –  
 (Asia Pacifi c) Ltd 5 rig services, marketing and  
     consultancy services and 
     providing equipment leasing 
     to the oil and gas industry

S&E Cumford (Thailand) Ltd 2  Distribution of electronic  Thailand  100 –
     motor, machinery, electronic, 
     equipment and chemicals

Held by subsidiaries     
Globaltech Offshore   Supplying and servicing Singapore  80 80
 & Marine Pte Ltd 1 industrial/marine hoses,  
     fi ttings and related products

 
Globaltech Systems    Design, engineering, Singapore  70 70
 Engineering Pte Ltd 1 fabrication and system 
     integration and trading of 
     engineering products  
     for the marine, oil & gas, 
     power generation and 
     chemical industries     
      

Orient Marine Pte Ltd 3 Ship handling and sale  Singapore  100 –
     of marine spares equipment     
  

MarineHub Pte Ltd 3  Trading of marine related  Singapore  100 100
     products and provision 
     of marine-related services     
  

Starbeam Technology Pte Ltd 3 Testing and certifi cation  Singapore  99.9 99.9
     for related marine, offshore  
     and construction products    
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16  SUBSIDIARIES – THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

      Country of  Ownership interest 
Name of subsidiaries Principal activities incorporation  held by the Group

          2005 2004
          % %

Held by the subsidiaries
Aqua-Terra Supply  Inactive  The People’s Repulic  100 –
 (Shanghai) Co. Ltd 5  of China    
   
Aqua-Terra Offshore  Inactive  The People’s Repulic  100 –
 (Shanghai) Co. Ltd 5  of China    
    
S&E Cumford (Thailand) Ltd 2  Distribution of electronic  Thailand  – 100
     motor, machinery, electronic, 
     equipment and chemicals     
  
S & E Cumford Sdn Bhd 2 Marketing, trading   Malaysia  100 100
     of electric motors 
        
Atlantic Esbjeng Limited 2 Inactive Mauritius  100 50

1 Audited by KPMG, Singapore
2 Audited by other member fi rms of KPMG International
3 Audited by Chio Lim & associates, Singapore
4 Audited by other fi rms of Certifi ed Public Accountants
5 Newly incorporated, auditors not appointed yet

17  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
          Renovation,
      Leasehold Plant and Motor Offi ce  furniture 
       properties machinery vehicles equipment and fi ttings Total 
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group
Cost      
At 1 January 2004 –    2,691 1,343 1,409 755 6,198
Additions  –    5,353 267 174 76 5,870
Assets acquired in business 
 combinations –    1,612 268 390 331 2,601
Disposals  –    (15) (55) (10) –    (80)
Reclassifi cation –    (42) –    42 –    –   
Translation differences –    (11) (4) (5) (2) (22)
At 31 December 2004 –    9,588 1,819 2,000 1,160 14,567
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17  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT CONTINUED)

          Renovation,
      Leasehold Plant and Motor Offi ce  furniture 
       properties machinery vehicles equipment and fi ttings Total 
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group 
At 1 January 2005 –    9,588 1,819 2,000 1,160 14,567
Additions  –    380 656 608 162 1,806
Assets acquired  
 in business 
 combinations 3,507 166 260 1,363 268 5,564
Disposals  –    (91) (323) (257) (69) (740)
Translation difference –    96 –    3 1 100
At 31 December 2005 3,507 10,139 2,412 3,717 1,522 21,297

 
Accumulated depreciation 
 and impairment losses      
At 1 January 2004 –    1,597 727 830 331 3,485
Depreciation charge 
 for the year –    1,072 247 300 125 1,744
Assets acquired 
 in business
 combinations –   218 23 228 21 490
Disposals  –    (16) (49) (3) –    (68)
Reclassifi cation –    (18) –    18 –    –    
Translation difference –    (7) (4) (4) (1) (16)
At 31 December 2004 –    2,846 944 1,369 476 5,635
      
At 1 January 2005 –    2,846 944 1,369 476 5,635
Depreciation charge 64    1,187 379 550 178 2,358
Assets acquired 
 in business
 combinations 1,485 104 169 987 248 2,993
Disposals  –    (83) (235) (232) (33) (583)
Translation difference –    14 –    1 1 16
At 31 December 2005 1,549 4,068 1,257 2,675 870 10,419

Carrying amount       
At 1 January 2004 –    1,094 616 579 424 2,713
At 31 December 2004 –    6,742 875 632 684 8,932
      
At 1 January 2005 –    6,742 875 632 684 8,932
At 31 December 2005 1,958 6,071 1,155 1,042 652 10,878
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17  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT CONTINUED)

          Renovation,
      Leasehold Plant and Motor Offi ce  furniture 
       properties machinery vehicles equipment and fi ttings Total 
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Company
Cost     
At 1 January 2004  2,333 1,181 543 712 4,769
Additions   2 39 122 55 218
Disposals   (16) (247) (1) –     (264)
At 31 December 2004  2,319 973 664 767 4,723
     
At 1 January 2005  2,319 973 664 767 4,723
Additions   –    538 309 1 848
Disposals   (975) (304) (181) (33) (1,493)
At 31 December 2005  1,344 1,207 792 735 4,078
     
Accumulated depreciation 
 and impairment losses     
At 1 January 2004  1,450 624 419 315 2,808
Depreciation charge for the year  233 176 104 106 619
Disposals   (15) (172) (1) –    (188)
At 31 December 2004  1,668 628 522 421 3,239

At 1 January 2005  1,668 628 522 421 3,239
Depreciation charge for the year  110 195 138 108 551
Disposals   (517) (216) (179) (17) (929)
At 31 December 2005  1,261 607 481 512 2,861
     
Carrying amount     
At 1 January 2004  883 557 125 397 1,961
At 31 December 2004  651 345 142 346 1,484
     
At 1 January 2005  651 345 142 346 1,484
At 31 December 2005  83 600 311 223 1,217

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment held by the Group and the Company under fi nance leases at 
31 December 2005 amounted to $1,562,000 (2004: $1,724,000) and $40,000 (2004: $178,000) respectively.
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18  GOODWILL

         Group
         $’000

   
Cost   
At 1 January 2004      1,650
Acquisition through business combinations:   
-  as previously reported      5,071
- subsequent fair value adjustment      (642)
         4,429
At 31 December 2004, restated      6,079
   
At 1 January 2005      6,079
Effect of adopting FRS 103      (1,242)
At 1 January 2005, restated      4,837
Acquisition through business combinations     897  
At 31 December 2005      5,734

Accumulated amortisation    
At 1 January 2004      907
Amortisation charge for the year      335
At 31 December 2004, restated      1,242
   
At 1 January 2005, as previously stated     1,242
Effect of adopting FRS 103       (1,242)
At 1 January 2005, restated and at 31 December 2005    –  
   
Carrying amount   
At 1 January 2004      743
At 31 December 2004, restated      4,837
   
At 1 January 2005      4,837
At 31 December 2005      5,734
   
In the current fi nancial year, certain comparative information presented in the consolidated fi nancial statements of the 
Group for the year ended 31 December 2004 has been restated in accordance with FRS 103 to refl ect the subsequent 
adjustment of the fair values of the non-current payables of a subsidiary acquired in 2004 and the corresponding 
adjustment of the goodwill previously reported as if such adjustments had been made on the date of acquisition of 
the said subsidiary.

Impairment tests for the cash-generating units containing goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”) in its distribution business.  The recoverable amount 
of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations.  These calculations use cash fl ow projections based on 
fi nancial budgets approved by management covering a fi ve-year period. Cash fl ows beyond the fi ve-year period are 
extrapolated using the estimate rates stated below.  The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth 
rate for the business in which the CGU operates.

KSAR'05 P25-88CR12.indd   67KSAR'05 P25-88CR12.indd   67 3/31/06   9:51:51 AM3/31/06   9:51:51 AM



68
KS ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005

18  GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations
    %
Growth rate  10
Discount rate   9

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each CGU within the distribution business segment.
The weighted average growth rate used is consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports. The discount 
rate used is pre-tax and refl ects specifi c risks relating to the Group’s distribution business.

19  OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

       Group Company
        2005 2004 2005 2004

        $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Convertible loans to third party corporations   193 393     193     393
Club membership   301 301 301 301
      494 694 494 694

During the year, a convertible loan amounting to $200,000 was substantially converted into 20% of the ordinary shares 
of a third party corporation.  The conversion was based on the net tangible assets of the third party corporation as 
at the date of conversion.  The unconverted loan amount has been repaid to the Company.

As at 31 December 2005,  the covertible loan of $193,000 is convertible into new ordinary shares of another third 
party corporation representing approximately 15% of its total issued ordinary share capital.  The convertible loan is 
unsecured, interest free and can be converted anytime from the date of subscription to 6 June 2007.

20  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

      Group Company
        2005 2004 2005 2004

        $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
         (Restated)

Current    
Trade payables   47,410 19,686 11,482 5,287 
Advances from customers   28,151 9,791 –      –     
Due to a director of a subsidiary (non-trade)  – 9,230 –      –     
Refundable deposits   116 748 76 736
Fair value derivatives   102 –   102 –  
Sundry creditors   1,372 3,119 331 270
Accrued operating expenses   9,891 6,814 3,079 2,965
     87,042 49,388 15,070 9,257
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20  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

      Group Company
        2005 2004 2005 2004

        $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
         (Restated)

Non-Current    
Trade payable:    
- companies related by a director of a subsidiary  2,218 3,442 –      –     
    
Non-trade payable:    
- companies related by a director of a subsidiary  1,372 2,128 –      –     

        3,590 5,570 –      –  
     90,632 54,958 15,070 9,257

The non-trade amounts due to a director of a subsidiary as at 31 December 2004 was unsecured, interest free and 
was fully repaid during the current fi nancial year.

The non-current trade and non-trade payables are unsecured, interest-free and repayable over equal quarterly 
instalments over two and a half years from 4 January 2006.

21  AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES

          Company
          2005 2004
          $’000 $’000
  

Current       – 398
Non-current     38,561 17,562
        38,561 17,960 
  
The non-current amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, bear interest at 1% (2004:1%) per annum and are repayable 
within 5 years from the balance sheet date.

22  BORROWINGS

      Group Company
       2005 2004 2005 2004

           $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
    

Current    
Bills payable to banks (unsecured)   7,279 8,487 104 350
Secured bank loans   –   525 –      –   
Unsecured bank loans   9,860 6,300 6,100 2,800
Finance lease liabilities   397 394 21 54
        17,536 15,706 6,225 3,204
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22  BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

      Group Company
       2005 2004 2005 2004

           $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Non-current    
Unsecured bank loans   2,717 5,100 1,250 5,100
Finance lease liabilities   470 858 10 114
        3,187 5,958 1,260 5,214
Total borrowings   20,723 21,664 7,485 8,419
    
Maturity of borrowings (excluding fi nance lease liabilities)

      Group Company
       2005 2004 2005 2004

           $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Within 1 year   17,139 15,312 6,204 3,150
After 1 year but within 5 years   2,717 5,100 1,250 5,100
Total      19,856 20,412 7,454 8,250

Finance lease liabilities
At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company have obligations under fi nance leases that are payable as 
follows:

    Principal Interest Payments Principal Interest Payments
    2005 2005 2005 2004 2004 2004
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group 
Repayable      
- within 1 year 397 9 406 394 14 408
- after 1 year but  
  within 5 years 425 20 445 772 43 815
- after 5 years 45 –    45 86 –    86
    470 20 490 858 43 901
Total   867 29 896 1,252 57 1,309
      
Company 
Repayable      
- within 1 year 21 4 25 54 9 63
- after 1 year but  
  within 5 years 10 1 11 109 21 130
- after 5 years –    –    –    5 –    5
    10 1 11 114 21 135
Total   31 5 36 168 30 198
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22  BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The weighted average effective interest rates per annum relating to borrowings at the balance sheet dates for the 
Group and the Company are as follows: 

       Group Company
        2005 2004 2005 2004

        % % % %
      
Bills payable    4.64 3.08 3.60 3.08
Bank loans    5.58 4.55 5.15 4.55

 
The interest rates for the above bank borrowing reprice monthly.

23  DEFERRED TAX

Movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances) during the year are as follows: 

        Charged/
        (Credited)
        to profi t 
        and loss  
       At 1 Jan account  At 31 Dec
       2005 (note 7)  2005  
       $’000 $’000 $’000

Group    
Deferred tax assets    
Provisions    (148) 90 (58)
    
Deferred tax liabilities    
Plant and equipment    309 (129) 180
Others      505 (505) –    
Total     814 (634) 180
    
    
Company    
Deferred tax assets    
Provisions    (90) 90 –     

Deferred tax liabilities    
Plant and equipment    148 (148) –     
Others      505 (505) –     
Total     653 (653) –     
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23  DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same taxation authority.  The following amounts, 
determined after appropriate offsetting, are as follows:

      Group Company
            2005 2004 2005 2004

           $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
    
Deferred tax liabilities   122 666 –      563

24  SHARE CAPITAL – COMPANY

      2005 2004 
      No. of  No. of

       shares $’000  shares $’000
    

Authorised:    
Ordinary shares of $0.10 each   500,000,000 50,000 200,000,000 20,000
    
Issued and fully paid:    
At 1 January    127,833,646 12,783 127,823,646 12,783
Issue of new shares   10,000,000 1,000 –       –      
Issue of bonus shares   60,646,800 6,065 –       –      
At 31 December   198,480,446 19,848 127,823,646 12,783

(a)  By an ordinary resolution passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 14 November 2005, the Company’s 
authorised share capital was increased to $50,000,000 by the creation of an additional 300,000,000 ordinary share 
of $0.10 each.

(b)  On 4 February 2005, the Company increased its issued and paid up capital from $12,783,365 to $13,783,365 via 
the placement of 10,000,000 new ordinary shares of par value of $0.10 each at an issue price of $0.89 per share. 
The newly issued shares rank pari passu in all respects with the previously issued shares.

(c) On 22 March 2005, the Company increased its issued and paid up capital from $13,783,365 to $16,540,038 
via a bonus issue of 27,566,729 new ordinary shares of par value of $0.10 each by way of capitalisation of the 
share premium account of the Company. The bonus shares were allotted to the shareholders of the Company 
on the basis of one bonus share for every fi ve existing shares of $0.10 each in the share capital of the Company. 
The newly issued shares rank pari passu in all respects with the previously issued shares.

(d)  On 13 September 2005, the Company increased its issued and paid up capital from $16,540,038 to $19,848,045 
via a bonus issue of 33,080,071 new ordinary shares of par value of $0.10 each by way of capitalisation of the 
share premium account of the Company. The bonus shares were allotted to the shareholders of the Company 
on the basis of one bonus share for every fi ve existing shares of $0.10 each in the share capital of the Company. 
The newly issued shares rank pari passu in all respects with the previously issued shares.
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25  RESERVES 

The application of the share premium account is governed by Section 69 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50.

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the 
fi nancial statements of foreign operations whose functional currencies are different from the functional currency of 
the Company;

The fair value reserves include the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale investments until the 
investments are derecognised.

26  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out in note 2 have been applied in preparing the fi nancial statements for the year ended 
31 December 2005.

The changes in accounting policies arising from the adoption of FRS1 (revised) Presentation of Financial Statements, 
FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, FRS 103 Business Combinations, FRS 36 (revised) Impairment 
of Assets, and FRS 38 (revised) Intangible Assets are summarised below:

FRS 1 (revised) Presentation of Financial Statements
In prior years, the Group’s share of taxation of associates and jointly controlled entities accounted for using the equity 
method was included as part of the Group’s income tax expense in the consolidated profi t and loss account.  With 
effect from 1 January 2005, in accordance with FRS 1 (revised), the Group changed the presentation and included the 
share of taxation of associates and jointly controlled entities accounted for using the equity method in the Group’s 
share of results of associates and jointly controlled entities reported in the consolidated profi t and loss account 
before arriving at the Group’s profi t before tax.  These changes in presentation have been applied retrospectively with 
comparatives restated as shown below:
       Group
       Effects of 
       As adopting
       previously FRS 1 As
       reported (revised) restated
       $’000 $’000 $’000

Consolidated profi t and loss account for the year 
 ended 31 December 2004
Share of results of associates and jointly controlled entities  1,621 (1,621) –   
Share of results of associates    – 1,551 1,551
Share of results of jointly controlled entities   – (35) (35)
Profi t before tax    18,938 (105) 18,833
Income tax expense    (2,255) 105 (2,150)

FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with FRS 39, the Group changed its accounting policies relating 
to fi nancial instruments to those set out in notes 2.7, 2.8, 2.9, 2.13 and 2.16.  Further details of the changes are as 
follows:
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26  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Non-current marketable investments

  Prior to the adoption of FRS 39, marketable investments held on a continuing basis for a long-term purpose were 
stated at cost less impairment losses.  With the adoption of FRS 39, non-current marketable investments are 
classifi ed as available-for-sale investments and are stated at fair value where changes in fair value are recognised 
directly in equity in the fair value reserve.  This change in accounting policy resulted in the Group and the Company 
recognising a fair value reserve of $19,851,000 at 1 January 2005.  Comparatives have not been restated.

(b) Non-quasi equity inter-company loans

  Prior to the adoption of FRS 39, low-interest and interest-free inter-company loans to and from subsidiaries were 
stated at cost.  With the adoption of FRS 39, such inter-company loans are recognised initially at fair value and 
subsequently stated at amortised cost with the difference between cost and maturity value being recognised in 
the Company’s profi t and loss account over the repayment term of the inter-company loans using the effective 
interest method.  This change in accounting policy resulted in an increase in the opening balance of the Company’s 
accumulated profi ts at 1 January 2005 by $2,431,000.  In addition, the Company recognised a net income of 
$6,211,000 arising from the inter-company loans from subsidiaries in its profi t and loss account for the year ended 
31 December 2005.  Comparatives have not been restated.

(c) Non-current trade and other payables

  Prior to the adoption of FRS 39, non-current trade and other payables were stated at cost.  With the adoption 
of FRS 39, non-current trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently stated at 
amortised cost with the difference between cost and maturity value being reconised in the profi t and loss account 
as an interest expense over the repayment term of the non-current trade and other payables using the effective 
interest method.  This change in accounting policy resulted in the Group recognising an imputed interest expense 
of $280,000 for the year ended 31 December 2005.

(d) Derivative fi nancial instruments

  Prior to the adoption of FRS 39, derivative fi nancial instruments entered into by the Group to hedge the interest 
rate risk of a recognised asset or liability or the foreign currency risk of a committed future transaction were 
recognised on an accrual basis with reference to the timing of recognition of the hedged transaction.  With the 
adoption of FRS 39, all derivative fi nancial instruments entered into by the Group are stated at fair value where 
changes in fair value are recognised in the profi t and loss account.  This change in accounting policy resulted in 
the Group and the Company recognising a net loss on remeasurement of derivatives at fair value of $102,000 for 
the year ended 31 December 2005.

FRS 103 Business Combinations, FRS 36 (revised) Impairment of Assets and FRS 38 (revised) Intangible Assets
Prior to the adoption of FRS 103, subsequent adjustments of the fair values of identifi able assets and liabilities 
acquired and goodwill arising on a business combination were accounted for prospectively in the consolidated 
fi nancial statements of the Group.  With effect from 1 January 2005, in accordance with FRS 103, such adjustments are 
accounted for retrospectively and the comparatives are restated accordingly.  This resulted in the restatement of the 
following comparatives as the fair values of the non-current trade and other payables acquired through the business 
combination in 2004 were subsequently adjusted during the year:     
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26  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

       Group
       As Effects of 
       previously adopting As
       reported FRS 103 restated 
       $’000 $’000 $’000

Consolidated balance sheets for the year ended 
31 December 2004
Goodwill     5,479 (642) 4,837
Non-current trade and other payables   (6,212) 642 5,570

In addition, the adoption of FRS 103, FRS 36 (revised) and FRS 38 (revised) has resulted in a change in the accounting 
policy for goodwill.  Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses and is no longer amortised.  Instead, 
goodwill impairment is tested annually, or when circumstances change, indicating that goodwill might be impaired.  Had 
there not been a change in accounting policy for goodwill, the Group’s profi t for the year ended 31 December 2005 
would decrease by $753,000 due to amortisation of goodwill.

All changes in the accounting policies have been made in accordance with the transitional provisions in the respective FRSs.

27  ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 18 April 2005, the Group acquired all the shares in Orient Marine Pte Ltd for $3,114,000 in cash.  This subsidiary 
is engaged in the business of ship handling and sale of marine spares equipment. This subsidiary contributed a net 
profi t of $1,003,000 to the Group’s consolidated net profi t for the year.

On 16 August 2005,  the Group acquired the remaining 20% equity interest in the share capital of Atlantic Esbjerg Holding 
Pte Ltd for $791,000 in cash.  The contribution of the subsidiary to the Group’s consolidated net profi t for the year was 
insignifi cant.

On 17 August 2005, the Group acquired the remaining 50% equity interest in the share capital of Atlantic Esbjerg Limited 
for $1,651,000 in cash.  The contribution of the subsidiary to the Group’s consolidated net profi t for the year was 
insignifi cant.

Had the acquisitions of the above subsidiaries occurred on 1 January 2005, the Group’s revenue and net profi t for the 
year ended 31 December 2005 would have been $281,198,000 and $37,209,000 respectively.
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27  ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The effect of the acquisitions of subsidiaries is set out below:
          2005 2004
         Note $’000 $’000

Due to a related party     5,754 –
Property, plant and equipment     2,571 2,111
Inventories      2,242 8,741
Trade receivables     7,549 13,079
Other current assets     168 176
Cash and cash equivalents     526 1,801
Trade and other payables     (10,497) (18,035)
Borrowings      (24) (1,526)
Provision for current tax     (234) (407)
Deferred taxation      – (81)
Net assets acquired     8,055 5,859
Minority interests     – (398)
Net identifi able assets and liabilities     8,055 5,461
Payment to a minority shareholder     791 –
Goodwill on acquisition    18 897 4,429
Amount previously accounted for as jointly controlled entity   (4,133) –
          5,610 9,890
Cash acquired     (526) (1,801)
Net cash outfl ow     5,084 8,089

The goodwill is attributable to the anticipated profi tability of the acquired business and the synergies expected to 
arise after the Group’s acquisition of the subsidiaries.

28  SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Identity of Related Parties 
For the purposes of these fi nancial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has 
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise signifi cant infl uence over the party in making fi nancial 
and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to common control or common 
signifi cant infl uence.  Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

During the fi nancial year, Kim Seng Holdings Pte Ltd, a company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore, ceased to 
be the immediate and ultimate holding company.  As at 31 December 2005, Kim Seng Holdings Pte Ltd remains as a 
shareholder of the Company in which two of the Company’s directors have substantial fi nancial interests.

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the fi nancial statements, the transactions with related parties are as follows:

          Group
          2005 2004
          $’000 $’000

Sales and purchases of goods and services   
Sales of fi nished goods to a company related by common directors   3 3
Purchases of consumables from a company related by common directors   42 129
Rental charges from a company related by common directors   1,154 1,202
Interest income on loans to a joint venture    425 232
Technical consultancy fees from a joint venture    15 88
Professional fees paid to a fi rm in which a director of the Company is a member  11 5
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29  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management objectives and policies
Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Group.  The Group is subject to market risks including 
changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates as well as credit risk.  The Group has a system of 
controls in place to create an acceptable balance between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of managing the 
risks.  The management continually monitors the Group’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate 
balance between risk and control is achieved. 

Credit risk
Credit risk is the potential fi nancial loss resulting from the failure of a customer or a counterparty to settle its fi nancial 
and contractual obligations to the Group, as and when they fall due.

The Group has established a system of internal controls to ensure that all customers are with acceptable credit history.  
Credit limits and balances are monitored on an on-going basis. Cash and fi xed deposits are placed with banks and 
fi nancial institutions which are regulated.  Investments and transactions involving derivative fi nancial instruments are 
allowed only with counterparties that are of high quality.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has concentration of credit risk in 3 major customers representing approximately 
21% (2004: 23%) of total trade receivables.  The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying 
amount of each fi nancial asset, including derivative fi nancial instruments, in the balance sheets.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to interest-earning fi nancial assets and interest-
bearing fi nancial liabilities. Interest rate risk is managed by the Group on an on-going basis with the primary objective 
of limiting the extent to which net interest expense could be affected by an adverse movement in interest rates.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by 
management to fi nance the Group’s operations and to mitigate the effects of fl uctuations in cash fl ows.  The Group 
aims at monitoring fl exibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

Foreign currency risk
The Group incurs foreign currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in currencies other 
than Singapore dollars.  The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily the United States dollars.

The Group hedges receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies over certain limits.  The Group uses 
forward exchange contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk.  Where necessary, the forward exchange contracts 
are rolled over at maturity at market rates.

Fair values
At the balance sheet date, except for the convertible loan due from a third party corporation, the carrying amounts of 
fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities approximated their fair values.

It is not practicable to estimate the fair value of the convertible loan as at 31 December 2005 without incurring 
excessive costs due to the absence of an active market for similar fi nancial assets.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005
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30  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES – COMPANY (UNSECURED)

(a) Guarantees issued to banks
  (i) Subsidiaries

  Guarantees issued to banks by the Company in respect of banking facilities extended to certain subsidiaries 
amounted to $4,200,000 (2004: $10,200,000), of which the amount utilised was $1,013,000 (2004: 
$1,581,000).

(ii) Jointly controlled entity
  Guarantees issued to banks by the Company in respect of banking facilities extended to a jointly controlled 

entity amounted to US$3,000,000 (2004: Nil), of which the amount utilised was US$2,838,000 (2004: Nil).

(iii) Associate of a jointly controlled entity
  During the year, the Company granted a corporate guarantee amounting to US$10 million jointly and severally 

with a joint venture partner to an associate of the jointly controlled entity for banking facilities.

(iv) Third party corporation
  During the current year,  a corporate guarantee issued by the Company in favour of a third-party corporation 

was enforced by the bank and the Company made a payment of approximately $196,000 to fully settle its 
obligation as a guarantor to the bank. Subsequently, the Company recovered $120,000 from the third party 
corporation.  The irrecoverable amount was charged to the profi t and loss account.

(b) In previous year,  a claim was lodged by a third party against a subsidiary for non-payment of trade balances 
amounting to approximately $1,128,000.  The subsidiary has accrued for approximately $978,000 in trade payables 
as at 31 December 2005.  The legal case is still in the process of preliminary hearing.  The directors are of the 
view that no material losses shall arise in respect of the claim at the date of the fi nancial statements.

(c) A claim was lodged in previous year by a third party against a subsidiary for compensation claims for damages 
amounting to approximately $1,020,000 arising from the sale of defective motors. During the current year, the Court 
has ruled in favour of the subsidiary but an appeal has been lodged by the plaintiff to the Court.  In the opinion of 
the directors, after taking appropriate legal advice, the dispute arose from events prior to the acquisition of the 
subsidiary by the Group and as such, the Group should not be held liable for the compensation for damages.

31  COMMITMENTS

  Capital commitments 
          Group
          2005 2004
          $’000 $’000
  

Contracted for but not provided for  
 -  to acquire investment     3,356 –
 -  to acquire plant and equipment     –  120
        3,356 120

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005
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31  COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Operating lease commitments
Where the Group and Company is a lessee:
As at balance sheet date, the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases with terms 
exceeding one year are as follows:

      Group Company
        2005 2004 2005 2004
        $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

    
Not later than one fi nancial year   2,728 1,975 307 305
Later than one fi nancial year but not later than fi ve 
 fi nancial years   15,009 13,831 26      –     
Later than fi ve fi nancial years   10,937 9,688 –      –     

        28,674 25,494 333 305

Where the Group is a lessor:
The future aggregate minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases contracted for at 
the balance sheet date but not recognised as assets, are as follows:

         Group
          2005 2004
          $’000 $’000
  

Not later than one fi nancial year     16,559 6,302
Later than one fi nancial year but not later than fi ve fi nancial years   52,455 62,853
Later than fi ve fi nancial years     17,009 18,839
        86,023 87,994

32  SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and geographical segments. The primary format 
– business segments is based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structure.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be 
allocated on a reasonable basis.  Unallocated items mainly comprise corporate assets and expenses, interest income, 
interest expenses and related assets and liabilities.

The Group comprises the following main business segments:

Distribution: Sale of hydraulic products, hardware products and tools and equipment to the marine and oil and gas 
industries. 

Capital Equipment and related services: Provision of capital equipment and related services to the oil and gas industry.

The business of the Group are operated in two principal geographical areas, namely, Singapore and the People’s 
Republic of China.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical location 
of customers.  Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005
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32  SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Group segmental information
Primary reporting format  – business segments
     Capital equipment 
    Distribution & related services Group
    2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

      
Revenue  160,716 69,185 108,365 26,068 269,081 95,253
      
Segment result 11,630 4,188 12,227 5,341 23,857 9,529
      
Unallocated income     606 176
Net gain on disposal 
 of investments     13,917 7,612
Share of results of 
 associates 793 – (132) 1,551 661 1,551
Share of results of jointly 
 controlled entities – – 2,497 (35)    2,497 (35)
Profi t before tax     41,538 18,833
Income tax expense     (4,444) (2,150)
Profi t for the year      37,094 16,683
      
Asset and liabilities      
Segment assets 136,165 85,205 37,068 14,812 173,233 100,017
Investments in associates 2,409 – 59 – 2,468 –
Investments in jointly  
 controlled entities – – 230 1,625 230 1,625
Unallocated assets     66,623 29,832
Total assets      242,554 131,474
      
Segment liabilities 65,930 50,407 39,987 13,202 105,917 63,609
Tax liabilities     5,743 2,839
Unallocated liabilities     5,438 13,013
Total liabilities     117,098 79,461
      
Other segment 
 information      
Capital expenditure 1,719 537 87 5,333 1,806 5,870
Depreciation 1,513 794 845 950 2,358 1,744
Amortisation –     335     –     –     –     335

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005
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32  SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

  Secondary reporting format 
  – geographical segments
       Carrying amount of Capital

    Revenue  segment assets Expenditure
    2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Singapore 94,760 35,844 192,289 88,870 1,456 168
The People’s Republic 
 of China 27,649 36,299 19,899 12,362 153 5,526
Other regions 146,672 23,110 30,366 30,242 197 176
    269,081 95,253 242,554 131,474 1,806 5,870
 

33  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(a) Upon implementation of the Companies (Amendment) Act 2005 on 30 January 2006,

  (i) the concept of authorised share capital was abolished;

  (ii) the shares of the Company has no par value; and

   (iii) the amount standing to the credit of the Company’s share premium account was transferred to the Company’s 
share capital.

(b) On 25 November 2005, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire 51% of the issued and paid up capital of 
Amos International (S) Pte Ltd,  a company incorporated in Singapore.  The total consideration will be approximately 
$383,000.  At the date of issue of these fi nancial statements, the above acquisition has not been completed.

(c) On 2 March 2006, the Company has acquired the remaining 25% equity interest in a subsidiary, Globaltech Group 
Pte Ltd for $1,379,000 satisfi ed in cash.  Upon completion of the acquisition, Globaltech Group Pte Ltd will be a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

(d) The directors proposed a bonus issue of 39,696,000 ordinary shares of $0.10 each to existing shareholders in the 
proportion of one share for every fi ve shares held by the application of $3,970,000 in the share premium account.  
The Company has obtained the in-principle approval from the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited for 
the listing of the bonus shares on 24 February 2006.

(e) The directors proposed a fi nal dividend for 2005 of 2.0 cents (2004: 0.8 cents) per share less tax at 20% 
(2004: 20%) and a special fi nal dividend for 2005 of 0.6 cents per share (2004: NIL) less tax at 20% amounting 
to a net dividend of $4,128,393 (2004: $1,058,562).  The proposed fi nal dividends have not been provided for in 
these fi nancial statements.
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34  POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW/REVISED FRSS AND INT FRSS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IN 2005 

At the date of issue of these fi nancial statements, the Council on Corporate Disclosure and Governance has issued 
the following new/revised FRSs and INT FRSs which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2005 and 
which have not been adopted by the Group in the preparation of these fi nancial statements:

        Effective for annual periods
        beginning on or after 

INT FRS 106, Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specifi c Market - 
 Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment   1 December 2005
Amendment to FRS 19, Employee Benefi ts - Actuarial Gains and Losses, 
 Group Plans and Disclosures    1 January 2006
Amendment to FRS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - 
 Net Investment in a Foreign Operation   1 January 2006
Amendments to FRS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement: 
 – Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions  1 January 2006
 – The Fair Value Option    1 January 2006
 – Financial Guarantee Contracts and Credit Insurance  1 January 2006
FRS 106, Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources  1 January 2006
INT FRS 104, Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease  1 January 2006
INT FRS 105, Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration 
 and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds   1 January 2006
INT FRS 107,  Applying the Restatement Approach under FRS 29, 
 Financial Reporting in Hyperinfl ationary Economies   1 March 2006
Amendment to FRS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements – Capital Disclosures 1 January 2007
FRS 107, Financial Instruments: Disclosures   1 January 2007
FRS 40, Investment Property    1 January 2007

The Group plans to adopt those new/revised FRSs and INT FRSs, which are relevant to its operations, when they 
become effective in 2006 and 2007.  Except for additional disclosures and changes in presentation of certain fi nancial 
information, the Group does not expect the implementation of the above new/revised FRSs and INT FRSs to be relevant 
to its operations or have a material impact on its fi nancial statements when they come into effect in 2006 and 2007.

35   COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Certain comparatives in the fi nancial statements have been changed from the previous year due to the changes in accounting 
policies as described in note 26 and to be consistent with current year’s presentation.  The reclassifi cations are as follows:

          Company
         As previously As
          stated restated
         2005 2004
         $’000 $’000

Trade receivables     8,557 7,521
Other current assets     11,788 4,311
Amounts due from subsidiaries     – 8,512
Other non-current assets     4,160 694
Subsidiaries      9,561 13,027
Trade and other payables – current     9,655 9,257
Amounts due to subsidiaries – current    – 398
Borrowings – non-current     22,776 5,214
Amounts due to subsidiaries – non-current    – 17,562

The comparatives in the fi nancial statements were audited by another fi rm of Certifi ed Public Accountants.
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 15 MARCH 2006

Class of Shares   – Ordinary Shares 
Voting Rights   – One Vote per share

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDERS BY SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS  

Size of Holdings  No. of Ordinary % of No. of  % of   
      Shareholders Shareholders Shares Shareholding

1 – 999     105 5.08 37,236 0.02 
1,000 – 10,000   1,552 75.12 6,438,521 3.24 
10,001 – 1,000,000  390 18.88 17,582,933 8.86 
1,000,001 and above  19 0.92 174,421,756 87.88
      2,066 100.00 198,480,446 100.00

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
 
        Direct Interest Deemed Interests 
        No. of  No. of
No. Name      shares held % shares held %

1. Kim Seng Holdings Pte Ltd   78,408,000 39.50 – –
2. Tan Kim Seng     – – 78,408,000 (1) 39.50
3. Tan Fuh Gih     – – 78,408,000 (1) 39.50
4. Tan Hoo Lang     – – 78,408,000 (1) 39.50
5. Tan Wei Min     – – 78,408,000 (1) 39.50
6. Seletar Investments Pte Ltd    8,640,000 4.35 5,760,000 (2) 2.90
7. Temasek Capital (Private) Limited  – – 14,400,000 (3) 7.26
8. Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited – – 17,681,000 (4) 8.91 

     
(1)  Deemed to be interested in shares held by Kim Seng Holdings Pte Ltd.
(2) Deemed to be interested in shares held by Aranda Investments Pte Ltd.
(3) Deemed to be interested in shares held by direct and indirect subsidiaries of Temasek Capital (Private) Limited.
(4) Deemed to be interested in shares held by direct and indirect subsidiaries of Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited and 
 DBS Group Holdings Ltd group of companies.

SHAREHOLDERS’ STATISTICS
As at 15 March 2006
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SHAREHOLDERS’ STATISTICS
As at 15 March 2006

LIST OF 20 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

No. Name of Ordinary Shareholders No. of Shares % of Shareholding

1. Kim Seng Holdings Pte Ltd 78,408,000 39.50
2. Citibank Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd 13,605,440 6.85
3. DBS Nominees Pte Ltd 12,218,680 6.16 
4. United Overseas Bank Nominees Pte Ltd 9,648,625 4.86
5. HSBC (Singapore) Nominees Pte Ltd 8,648,660 4.36 
6. Seletar Investments Pte Ltd 8,640,000 4.35 
7. Raffl es Nominees Pte Ltd 6,229,400 3.14
8. Evenstar Investments Pte Ltd 5,937,450 2.99
9. Aranda Investments Pte Ltd 5,760,000 2.90
10. Ezra Holdings Limited 5,000,000 2.52
11. Kim Eng Securities Pte Ltd 3,600,160 1.81 
12. DBSN Services Pte Ltd 3,336,800 1.68 
13. Morgan Stanley Asia (Singapore) Securities Pte Ltd 2,996,000 1.51 
14. Mayban Nominees (Singapore) Pte Ltd 2,758,600 1.39 
15. CIMB-GK Securities Pte Ltd 1,917,941 0.97 
16. Hong Leong Finance Nominees Pte Ltd 1,894,200 0.95 
17. Phillip Securities Pte Ltd 1,404,800 0.71 
18. DB Nominees (Singapore) Pte Ltd 1,280,000 0.64 
19. UOB Kay Hian Pte Ltd 1,137,000 0.57 
20. OCBC Securities Private Ltd 717,480 0.36
 TOTAL    175,139,236 88.22

COMPLIANCE WITH RULE 723 OF THE SGX-ST LISTING MANUAL

Based on information available and to the best knowledge of the Company as at 15 March 2006, approximately 51.59% of the 
ordinary shares of the Company are held by the public. The Company is therefore in compliance with Rule 723 of the SGX-ST 
Listing Manual.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at No. 4, Tuas Avenue 5, 
Singapore 639331 on Friday, 21 April 2006 at 9.30 a.m. for the purpose of transacting the following business:

As Ordinary Business

1.  To receive and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company for the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005 together 
with the Directors’ Report and the Auditors’ Report thereon.   (Resolution 1)

2.  To declare a Final Dividend of 2.0 cents per ordinary share less tax for the year ended 31 December 2005.  (Resolution 2)

3.  To declare a Special Dividend of 0.6 cents per ordinary share less tax for the year ended 31 December 2005.   
          (Resolution 3)

4.  To approve Directors’ Fees of S$155,000 for the year ended 31 December 2005.  (Resolution 4)

5.  To re-elect the following directors who are retiring under Article 91 of the Articles of Association of the Company and 
have offered themselves for re-election:

     a. Mr Tan Fuh Gih      (Resolution 5)
 b. Mr Billy Lee Beng Cheng (See Explanatory Note 1)     (Resolution 6)

6.  To re-elect the following directors who are retiring under Article 97 of the Articles of Association of the Company and 
have offered themselves for re-election:

 a. Mr Lim Jit Poh (See Explanatory Note 2)     (Resolution 7)
     b. Mr Lim Ho Seng (See Explanatory Note 3)     (Resolution 8)
      c.  Mr Sheikh Faisal F.J. Althani (See Explanatory Note 4)     (Resolution 9)

7.  To re-appoint Messrs. KPMG as Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fi x their remuneration. (Resolution 10)

As Special Business

To consider and, if thought fi t, to pass the following as Ordinary Resolution, with or without modifi cations:

8. Authority to issue shares     (Resolution 11)
 “That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act (Cap 50) and in accordance with Rule 806 of the Listing 

Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“Listing Manual”), approval be and is hereby given to 
the Directors to issue: 

(a) shares in the Company (whether by way of bonus, rights or otherwise); or
(b) convertible securities
(c) additional convertible securities arising from adjustments made to the number of convertible securities previously 

issued in the event of rights, bonus or capitalisation issues; or
(d) shares arising from the conversion of convertible securities,

at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem 
fi t provided that:

(i) the aggregate number of shares and convertible securities that may be issued shall not be more than 50% of the issued 
share capital of the Company or such other limit as may be prescribed by the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading 
Limited (“SGX-ST”) as at the date the general mandate is passed;

(ii) the aggregate number of shares and convertible securities to be issued other than on a pro-rata basis to existing 
shareholders shall not be more than 20% of the issued share capital of the Company or such other limit as may be 
prescribed by the SGX-ST as at the date the general mandate is passed;

(iii) for the purpose of determining the aggregate number of shares that may be issued under sub-paragraphs 
(i) and (ii) above, the percentage of issued share capital shall be calculated based on the issued share capital of the 
Company as at the date the general mandate is passed after adjusting for new shares arising from the conversion or 
exercise of any convertible securities or employee stock options in issue as at the date the general mandate is passed and 
any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of the Company’s shares; and
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(iv) unless earlier revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, such authority shall continue in force until 
the next Annual General Meeting or the date by which the next Annual General Meeting is required by law to be 
held whichever is earlier.” (See Explanatory Note 5)

9.    To transact any other ordinary business which may be properly transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Lim Ka Bee
Company Secretary

Singapore, 5 April 2006

Explanatory Notes on Business to be Transacted

1.  Mr Billy Lee Beng Cheng, if re-elected, will remain as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and member of Audit Committee 
and Nominating Committee; and will be considered independent for the purpose of Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of 
the SGX-ST.

2.  Mr Lim Jit Poh, if re-elected, will remain as Chairman of the Audit Committee and member of the Nominating Committee 
and Remuneration Committee; and will be considered independent for the purpose of Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of 
the SGX-ST.

3.  Mr Lim Ho Seng, if re-elected, will remain as member of the Audit Committee, Nominating Committee and Remuneration 
Committee; and will be considered independent for the purpose of Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST.

4.  Mr Sheikh Faisal F. J.  Althani, if elected, will be considered independent for the purpose of Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of 
the SGX-ST.

5.  The Ordinary Resolution no. 11 is to authorise the Directors of the Company from the date of the above Meeting until the 
next Annual General Meeting to issue shares and/or convertible securities in the Company up to an amount not exceeding in 
aggregate 50 percent of the issued share capital of the Company of which the total number of shares and convertible securities 
issued other than on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders shall not exceed 20 percent of the issued share capital of the 
Company at the time the resolution is passed, for such purposes as they consider would be in the interests of the Company. 
This authority will, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, expire at the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Notes

i.  A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to attend and vote in his stead.

ii.  Where a member appoints more than one proxy, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifi es the proportion of his shareholding to be represented 
by each proxy.

iii.  A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

iv.  A corporation which is a member of the Company may authorise by resolution of its directors or other governing body, such person as it thinks fi t to act as 
its representative at the meeting.

v.  The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the registered offi ce of the Company at No. 4, Tuas Avenue 5, Singapore 639331 not less than 48 
hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting.

NOTICE OF BOOKS CLOSURE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Transfer Books and the Register of Members of the Company will be closed on 28 April 2006 for the purpose 
of determining members’ entitlement to a Final Dividend of 2.0 cents per ordinary share less income tax (“Final Dividend”) and a Special Dividend 
of 0.6 cents per ordinary share less income tax (“Special Dividend”). The Final Dividend and Special Dividend will be paid on 10 May 2006.

Shareholders whose shares are deposited with the Central Depository (Pte) Limited (“CDP”), whose securities account with the CDP are credited 
with the Company’s ordinary shares (“Shares”) as at 5.00 pm on 27 April 2006 will be entitled to the Final Dividend and Special Dividend.

Duly completed registrable transfers in respect of the Shares received up to the close of business at 5.00 pm on 27 April 2006 by the Company’s Share 
Registrar, Tricor Barbinder Share Registration Services at 8 Cross Street, #11-00 PWC Building, Singapore 048424, will be registered to determine 
Shareholders’ entitlements to the Final Dividend and Special Dividend.
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PROXY FORM

*I/We ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________

of _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________

being *a member/members of KS Energy Services Limited (the “Company”), hereby appoint 

Name Address NRIC/Passport No.
Proportion of shareholdings to 
be represented by proxy (%)

*and/or

as *my/our *proxy/proxies to vote for *me/us on *my/our behalf and, if necessary, to demand a poll, at the Annual General Meeting of the Company 
to be held at No. 4, Tuas Avenue 5, Singapore 639331 on Friday, 21 April 2006 at 9.30 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

*I/we direct *my/our *proxy/proxies to vote for or against the Ordinary Resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting as indicated 
with an “X” in the spaces provided hereunder.  If no specifi c directions as to voting are given, the *proxy/proxies will vote or abstain from voting 
at *his/their discretion.

No. Ordinary Resolutions For Against

1
To receive and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company for the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005 
together with the Directors’ Report and the Auditors’ Report thereon.

2 To declare a Final Dividend of 2.0 cents per ordinary share less tax for the year ended 31 December 2005. 

3 To declare a Special Dividend of 0.6 cents per ordinary share less tax for the year ended 31 December 2005. 

4 To approve Directors’ Fees of S$155,000 for the year ended 31 December 2005.

5 To re-elect Mr Tan Fuh Gih, who is retiring under Article 91 of the Articles of Association of the Company.

6
To re-elect Mr Billy Lee Beng Cheng, who is retiring under Article 91 of the Articles of Association 
of the Company.

7 To re-elect Mr Lim Jit Poh, who is retiring under Article 97 of the Articles of Association of the Company. 

8 To re-elect Mr Lim Ho Seng, who is retiring under Article 97 of the Articles of Association of the Company.

9
To re-elect Mr Sheikh Faisal F. J. Althani, who is retiring under Article 97 of the Articles of Association 
of the Company.

10 To re-appoint Messrs. KPMG as Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fi x their remuneration.

11 To authorise Directors to issue shares pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50.

Dated this__________________day of __________________2006

Signature(s) of Member(s)/Common Seal

* Delete accordingly 

IMPORTANT. Please read notes overleaf

Total Number of
Shares Held

IMPORTANT

1.  For investors who have used their CPF monies to buy KS Energy 
Services Limited shares, the Annual Report is forwarded to them 
at the request of their CPF Approved Nominees and is sent 
FOR INFORMATION ONLY.

2. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF investors and shall 
be ineffective for all intents and purposes if used or purported 
to be used by them.

KS ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED
(Company No.: 198300104G)
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)
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The Company Secretary
KS ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED

No. 4 Tuas Avenue 5
Singapore 639331

AFFIX
POSTAGE

STAMP

Notes:

1.  A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy need not be 
a member of the Company.

2.  Where a member of the Company appoints more than one proxy, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifi es the proportion of his holding to be represented 
by each proxy.

3.  A member should insert the total number of shares held.  If the member has shares entered against his name in the Depository Register (as defi ned in Section 130A of the 
Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore), he should insert that number of shares.  If the member has shares registered in his name in the Register of Members of the Company, 
he should insert the number of shares.  If the member has shares entered against his name in the Depository Register and shares registered in his name in the Register of 
Members of the Company, he should insert the aggregate number of shares.  If no number is inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed to relate to all the shares held by the 
member of the Company.

4.  The instrument appointing proxy or proxies must be deposited at the registered offi ce of the Company at No. 4, Tuas Avenue 5, Singapore 639331 not later than 48 hours 
before the time set for the Meeting.

5.  The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or his attorney duly authorised in writing.  Where the instrument appointing a proxy or 
proxies is executed by a corporation, it must be executed under its common seal or under the hand of its attorney or duly authorised offi cer.

6.  Where an instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is signed on behalf of the appointor by an attorney, the letter or power of attorney or a duly certifi ed copy thereof must 
(failing previous registration with the Company) be lodged with the instrument of proxy, failing which the instrument may be treated as invalid. 

7.  A corporation which is a member of the Company may, in accordance with Section 179 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 of Singapore, authorise by resolution of its directors or 
other governing body such person as it thinks fi t to act as its representative at the Meeting.

8.  The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly completed or illegible or where the true intentions of 
the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specifi ed in the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies.  In addition, in the case of members of 
the Company whose shares are entered against their names in the Depository Register, the Company may reject any instrument appointing a proxy or proxies lodged if such 
members are not shown to have shares entered against their names in the Depository Register 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting as certifi ed by The 
Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.
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